
COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

BEFORIC THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

P UBLlG SERVICE 
COMMlSSION 

APPLICATION OF THE GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 

FOR 

CERTIFICATE OF PIJBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY TO CONSTRUCT 
PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER LINE IMPROVEMENTS 

AND 
APPROVAL OF THE PROPOSED PLAN TO FINANCE THE IMPROVEMENTS 

CASE NO. 2009- 00 988 

Comes now the Grant County Sanitary Sewer District (“District”) by and through its 

Chairman, Bobby Burgess, and pursuant to duly authorized and adopted resolution of its 

Coininissioners submits the following Application for a Certificate of Public Convenience and 

Necessity and Approval of the Proposed Plan to Finance the Improvements (“Application”) 

pursuant to KRS 278.300 et seq. 

1. The full name and post office address of the Applicant is: 

Grant County Sanitary Sewer District 
One Farrell Drive 
P.O. Box 460 
Crittenden, KY 41030 

2. This Application is made pursuant to the provisions of ISRS 278.300; and 807 

KAR 5:OOl Section 8(8) and (9). 

3. The District is a non-profit sanitary sewer district organized under the provisions 

of KRS Chapter 74 and ISRS Chapter 67 and has no separate Articles of Incorporation. 

4. The District was created by Ordinance of the Grant County Fiscal Court on 

October 7, 2002, Ordinance No. 26-2002-453 (Exhibit “I”). 

5. Pursuant to 807 KAR 5 : O O  1, the District states: 



The District provides sanitary sewer collection and treatment for 
approximately 1,500 customers within its territory. The majority of these 
custoniers are residential in nature with a limited number of coniinercial 
and industrial customers. 

The territories served by the District are comprised principally of the 
geographical boundaries of the City of Crittenden, Kentucky and the 
immediate outlying areas. A map of the District facilities is attached as 
Exhibit “2”. Also included in Exhibit “2” is a Depreciation Schedule 
outlining the District’s assets. 

Currently, the District has approximately 30 miles of combined sanitary 
sewer lines within its territory. 

The District is serviced by a sanitary sewer treatment plant with the 
inaxiinuin treatment capacity of 300,000 gallons per day. Currently, the 
District’s treatment plant is operating at approximately 60% capacity 
calculated on an average daily basis. 

6. A full description of the proposed sanitary sewer line extension project follows: 

The project will include the construction of 8,935 feet of gravity sanitary 
sewer lines; 20,450 feet of force main sewer lines; and 7,571 feet of small 
diameter force main. 

A total of 1 submersible pump station; 5 submersible grinder pump 
stations; and 22 individual grinder pumps will be constructed. 

It is an anticipated that the Project will service approximately 84 
individual residences; provide service to the Grant Mobile Home Park 
which is currently serviced by an on-site package sewer treatment plant 
(56 mobile home pads); and Cincinnati South Campground, a Recreational 
Vehicle destination (approximately 12 acres in size). In addition to the 
residential customers, there will also be a limited number of 
commercial/industrial customers which will include 2 churches and 
approximately 5 businesses. 

The exact location and description of lines to be constructed are 
particularly identified on the attached project map (Exhibit “3”) with 
supporting documentation, plans and specifications. 

Attached to this Application are three (3) maps of suitable scale indicating 
the location of the new construction and sanitary sewer extensions and 
pump stations required (Exhibit “3”). 
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(0 A more detailed description of the sanitary sewer line extension project is 
contained in the attached engineering plans, specifications, plats and 
report of the proposed project (“Preliminary Engineering Repoi?”). The 
Preliminary Engineering Report is identified as Exhibit “4”. 

(g) The Project will also make available sanitary sewer service to 3 mobile 
home parks located southeast of Sliennan near the terminus of the Phase I 
Project. A manhole will be installed adjacent to Countryside Mobile Home 
Park to provide for hture hookup to the District’s sanitary sewer system 
by the 3 mobile home parks. By accepting Alternate No. 2 in the bid, a 
pump station and force main will be upsized to accept the 3 existing 
mobile home parks located to the south of the Project. It is anticipated that 
in hooking the 3 mobile home parks to the Phase I Project, an additional 
300 mobile home units will be added to the Project. Currently, the 3 
mobile home parks are located within the City of Williamstown 20 1 Study 
Area. Counsel for the 3 mobile home parks, in conjunction with the Park 
Owners, are making application with the City of WilliamstowdCity of 
Dry Ridge to accommodate and permit the 3 mobile home parks to hook 
into the District’s Phase I Project. When and if the 3 mobile parks hook 
into the Project, the District will have sufficient capacity at its treatment 
plant to handle the additional sanitary sewer generated. 

The District has received a preliminary Agreement from the 3 mobile 
home parks to enter into a Sanitaiy Sewer Services Agreement similar to 
that Agreement between the Grant Mobile Home Park and the District as 
approved by the Commission and attached hereto as Exhibit “8”. 

A very sinal1 portion of the Project encroaches in the City of 
WilliamstowdCity of Dry Ridge 201 Study Area. The District has 
received permission allowing that encroachment (Exhibit “1 2”). 

7. The project will be financed as follows: 

(a) The District has received a $900,000.00 grant from the Kentucky 
Infrastructure Authority (“KIA”). A grant conimitment letter is attached 
hereto as Exhibit “5”. 

(b) The District has received a second $6S0,000.00 grant from the Kentucky 
Infrastructure Authority. A grant commitnient letter is attached hereto as 
Exhibit “6”. 

(c) The District has received a Fund A Loan in the amount of $300,000.00 
from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (“ARRA”) of 
which $1 S6,300.00 of the principal $300,000.00 loan will be forgiven. The 
amortized loan amount of $143,700.00 shall bear interest at the rate of 3% 
per annum over a loan term of 20 years with an estimated annual debt 
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service of $9,600.00 and $300.00 annual administrative fee (see attached 
Exhibit “7”). 

(d) The District anticipates collecting $1,000.00 per residential tap in fee from 
new customers to be serviced by the construction project. In addition, it is 
budgeted that the District will receive $45,000.00 from the Grant Mobile 
Home Park representing its contribution to the consti-uction of a pump 
station pursuant to the teiins and condition of the District’s Agreement 
with the Grant Mobile Home Park dated December 26, 2008. A copy of 
that Agreement (without Exhibits) is attached hereto as Exhibit “8”. 

(e) The fimds identified in paragraph 7(a); 7(b), 7(c) and 7(d) represent the 
sole source of funds for the project. 

8. The District will not need a rate increase to fund the proposed project. 

9. The estimated cost of operation of the project after the proposed line and facilities 

are completed is contained in the attached Financial Report identified as Exhibit “9”. 

10. The facts relied upon to indicate that the proposed construction project will be 

required by public convenience and necessity are: 

(a) US Highway 25 is the main transportation corridor in Grant County 
(excluding 1-75). As such, this corridor represents the most significant area 
for growth developnient in Grant County. There are currently no sanitary 
sewer services and facilities available to businesses and residential 
customers in and along that portion of the TJS 25 corridor between the 
Cities of Crittenden and Dry Ridge. Additionally, there is currently a large 
mobile home park and overnight recreational vehicle park located in that 
area currently not served with public sanitary sewer services. The primary 
focus of the Project is to provide sanitary sewer service along this US 25 
corridor in an effort to encourage development and growth and to provide 
public sanitary sewer service to two (2) major existing operations (mobile 
home park and recreational vehicle park) requiiing sanitary sewer service. 
In doing so, the package treatment plants now providing sanitary sewage 
treatment can be taken out of service. It is also anticipated that the Project 
will service 3 additional mobile home parks currently serviced by on-site 
package treatment plants. 

11. The District has entered into a Special Contract with the ownedoperator of the 

Grant Mobile Home Park, A copy of that Special Contract (without Exhibits) is attached hereto 
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as Exhibit “8”. That Special Contract was previously submitted to the PSC for review and 

approved. 

12. A detailed map of the sewage treatment facilities currently operated by the 

District indicating the location of the plant, effluent discharge, collection mains, manholes and 

utility service areas is attached hereto as Exhibit “2”. 

13. A detailed estimated cost of construction for the Project is contained in the 

Preliminary Engineering Report, Exhibit “4”. The Final Engineering Report (Exhibit “ 1 1”) 

contains all constiuction cost as bid on November 19,2009. 

14. The Distiict requests a deviation pursuant to 807 ICAR 5:OOl 5 14 fioin the 

requirements of 807 KAR 5:001, 0 6 and all other financial reporting requiring that financial data 

filed with the Application be for a 12 month period ending within 90 days of the filing of the 

Application. The District states that there has been no change that is material in nature in the 

financial condition of the utility since December 31, 2008 as represented by the Audited 

Financial Statement attached hereto as Exhibit “10”. Exhibit “ I  0” represents the most recent 

published financial data available for the District. Additionally, the District would state that the 

funds to be borrowed for the financing of the Improvements in this Project represents less than 

8% of the overall Project costs. 

15. The Energy and Environment Cabinet, Department for Environmental Protection, 

Division of Water has certified the District’s entitlemeiit to receive priority for funding for the 

Project and is eligible to receive $300,000.00 from the Clean Water State Revolving Fund, 

funding in part by the ARRA by letter dated September 17,2009 (Exhibit “7”). 

16. The District would request that the Commission expedite its review and approval 

of the proposed Project, and Application in that time limitations have been imposed upon the 



District by A R M  to wit: That construction of the Project must be underway and in progress no 

later than February 9, 2010. In order to meet this deadline, the District will require immediate 

approval of the Project and Application. 

17. 

18. 

The District does not plan to support the Application with prepared testimony. 

As of the filing of this Application, the District has not received a Final Permit 

fi-om the Energy and Environmental Cabinet, Department for Environmental Protection, Division 

of Water. Application for that Permit was made in May, 2009 in which to receive coinrnents on 

the environmental issues expires December 15, 2009. The District is filing this Application in 

order to begin the review process. Iinrnediately upon receipt of the issued Final Pennit froin the 

Energy and Environmental Cabinet, Department for Environmental Protection Division of 

Water, a copy will be filed of record herein. 

19. 

20. 

Dated at Crittenden, Kentucky this 9”’ of December, 2009. 

Only 3 copies of Exhibit “2” and Exhibit “3” are attached. 

The District attaches hereto as Exhibit “1 1 ” the Final Engineer Report. 
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GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER 
DISTRICT 

/ 

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

COUNTY OF GRANT 

STJBSCRIBED, SWORN TO AND ACICNOLWEDGED before me by the said Bobby 
Burgess, Chairman, Grant County Sanitary Sewer District, this 9'" day of December, 2009. 

Respectfully submitted, 

BERGER, COX & NIENABER, P.S.C. 

Covington, ICY 4 10 1 1 
(859) 491-9088 
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APPENDIX OF EXHIBITS 

Exhibit No. 
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

Description 
Grant County Fiscal Court Ordinance No. 26-2002-453 

Map outlining the District’s existing Facilities 

Maps of suitable scale outlining location of new construction and sanitary 
sewer extensionshnprovements with supporting documentation, plans and 
specifications 

Preliminary Engineering Report 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority Grant Assistance Agreement for 
$900,000.00 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority Grant Assistance Agreement for 
$650,000.00 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority American Recovery and Reinvestment 
Act Revolving Loan Fund Coininitment Letter for $300,000.00 

Grant Mobile Home Park Sanitary Sewer Services Agreement 

Financial Report 

Audited Financial Statement 

Final Engineering Report 

City of Williainstown/City of Dry Ridge 201 Study Area Encroachment 
Authorization 



EXHIBIT “1” 
(Grant County Fiscal Court 
Ordinance No. 26-2002-453) 



ORDINANCE NO. 26-2002-453 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FISCAL COURT OF GRANT COUNTY. 

WHEREAS, the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Kentuck 
has enacted KRS 67.715 (2) which permits the County JudgdExecutive, wit fI 
the approval of the Fiscal Court, to create any special district; and 

WHEREAS, the fiscal court of Grant County desires to protect and 
safeguard the property, health, safety, and Welfare of the dtiens and the 
environment of Grant County; and 

WHEREAS, KRS 67.083 (3) (r ) provides that a fiscal court may make 
provision for wafer and sewage and garbage disposal servic9, including 
management of onsite sewage disposal systems: and 

WHEREAS, there presently exists within Grant County a public water 
district known as Bullock Pen Water District, same having been established and 
currently operated pursuant to KRS Ch8pbr 74; and 

WHEREAS, KRS 74.407 provides that a water district is authorized to 
acquire, develop, maintain and operate sewage disposal systems within the 
confines of their districts except operation of same within a municipal area 
having authority to provide sewer services must be with municipal consent; and 

have all of the pawers and authority 8s regards sewer systems that are 
conferred upon them for the purpose of furnishing a water supply under KRS 
74,070 to 74,415; and 

WHEREAS, KRS 74.407 provides that water district commissioners shall . 

WHEREAS, the fiscal court of Grant County is of the opinion that the 
Grant Coun Sanitary Sewer District should be operated by and in conjunction 
with Bullock %e n Water District; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the fiscal court of Grant County enads this 
ordinance which shall be known and may be cited as the "Grant County 
Sanitary Sewer District Ordinance". 

SECTION II: 



the Grant County Sanita Sewer District 
pursuant to KRS 67.715 (Z ) ,  67.083 (3 (r ) and the appli le provigions of 
KRS Chapter 74, which shall serve in de int8-t of public safet)c, heah and 
welfare within unincorporated areas of the temtorial boundanes of Grant 
County; 

e x  
Them is hstgby 

The Grant County Sanitary Sewer District shall develop, implement, and 
maintain BocaO sanitary sewer management for Grant County in accordance with 
the provisions of KRS Chapter 74, applicable administrative regulations 
promulgated b the Commonwealth of Kentucky, and the resolutions, orders or 
ordinances of x e fiscal court of Grant County. 

The Grant County Sanitary S e w e r  District shall be an organizational unit 
of county government attached to the office of County JudgelExecutive and 
shall have primary jurisdiction, responsibility, and authority for all matters 
pertaining to the management and operation of a sanitary sewer district within 
Grant County. 

SCTION 111. 

The Grant County Sanitary Sewer District shall be managed by Bullock 
Pen Water District pursuant to the applicable provisions of KRS Chapter 74, 
applicable administrative regulations of the Commonwealth of Kentucky and 
applicable orders or ordinances of the Grant County Fiscal Court. 

SECTION IV 

The Grant County Sanitary Sewer District created hereby shall be a 
of Grant but same shall not be a special political subdivision of the Coun 

service and land assessments for capital improvements. 
taxing district. The Grant County %a nitary Sewer District may make charges for 

SECTION V 

The provisions of this ordinance are severable and if any provisions shall 
be hetd invalid or unconstitutional or inapplicable to any petson or 
circumstance, such invalidity, unconstitutionality, or inapplicability shall not 
affect or impair the remaining provisions of this ordinance. This ordinance shall 
be in full force and effect from and after its approval, adoption and publication, 
and at1 ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith B E  hereby 
repealed and held for naught. 



Approved on first reading and o n l e d  published on the .r 16th Y of 
September, 2002. 

Agpmved on second reading on the 07th day of October, 2002. 

Grant County Fiscal Court 

By: f l&! 
Judge/ ve 

ATTEST: 

c n  



EXHIBIT “2” 
(Map outlining the District’s 

existing Facilities) 

















EXHIBIT “3” 
(Maps of suitable scale outlining 
location of new construction and 

sanitary sewer 
extensionshmprovements with 

supporting documentation, plans 
and specifications) 



EXHIBIT ‘‘4’’ 
(Preliminary Engineering Report) 



Preliminary Engineering Report 

Grant County Sewer Extension - Phase I 

Grant County 

Grant County Sanitary Sewer District 

CMW, Inc. 
400 E. Vine Street, Suite E 

Lexington, KY 40507 

November, 2003 
Revised October, 2009 
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Project Description 

for 

Grant County Sanitary Sewer District - Phase 1 

Grant County of Kentucky 

(Sherman Community, Claiborne Estates and sector of Hwy. 25) 

State Application Identifier No. KY20081020-0997 

Grant County Sanitary Sewer District (GCSSD) Phase 1 project consist of construction o f  8,940 feet of 8” 

gravity sewer, 20,450 feet of force main, 7,880 feet of small diameter force main, 43 manholes, a 

railroad bore, an interstate-75 road bore, 4 submersible pump stations, 2 submersible grinder pump 
stations, 22 individual grinder pumps to serve customers from south of Crittenden to Sherman. The 
portion of Kentucky Highway 25Sherman Road will include connections to  Grant County Mobile Home 
Park and KOA Campground and will eliminate their package sewer plant. The project will eliminate 
approximately 65 private septic systems and 2 privately owned/operated package WWTP’s. A 
connection will be made available for the Blackwell Mobile Home Park. GCSSD staff consists of 5 
commissioners, 5 administrative, 10 field-plant employees and one being a Class 4 Kentucky certified 
waste water operator. The name of this operator i s  Carl Crone. 



KENTUCKY 
WASTEWATER 

PROJECT PROFILE 

Areas  ind ica t ed  wi th  (*) a r e  required fields. 
. . - _ _  - . . . . - -- 

l.* Project Title [use title which will be identifiable by local cornrnunityk 
G r a n t  C o u n L y  Sewer E x t e n s i o n ,  P h a s e  I 

2.* m i e c t  Descriution: 
Provide a brief narrative denoting if project relates to source, distribution, treatment, storage o r  other) 
C o n s t r u c t i o n  of 14,ORO L F  of g r a v i t y  s e w e r  m a i n  w i L h  m a n h o l e s ,  2 sewer pump 
s t a l i o n s ,  3 g r i n d e r  pump s t a L i o n s ,  a n d  16,000 L F  of f o r c e  m a i n  t o  serve 
c u s t o m e r s  o n  H i g h w a y  2 5  f r o m  C i t y  of C r i t t e n d e n  s e w e r  s y s t e m  t o  S h e r m a n  
i n c l u d i n g  c o n n e c t i o n  t o  p u b l i c  s y s t e m  a n d  e l i m i n a t i o n  o f  G r a n t  WHP, B l a c h w e l l  
MHP a n d  KOA w a s t e w a t e r  t r e a t m e n t  p l a n t s  s e r v i n g  a t o t a l  of 1 9 0  new c u s t o m e r s  

*--. 

* WRIS Project Number (PNUM): S x 2 1 0 8 1 3 0 3  
This number is assigned by an A D D  through the respective Area Water Management Planning Council once the project profile IS approved 
by the Council This number ties each project to mappedlspattal information in t h e  Water Resource Information System (WRIS) Proiect 
profiles withollt this number AND the required corresponding mapped/spatial information will NOT be accepted 

- <  * Project County: G r a n t  

* I f  wastewater project, KPDES#(s): 

Available: Selected: 
K Y 0 0 0 2 8 0 1  
K Y  0 0 2 0 0 0 1  
K Y  00 2 0 0 1 0 
K Y 0 0 2 0 0 3 6  
KY 0020044 
KY 0 0 2 0 0 4  4 
K Y  002006  1 
K Y 0 0 2 0 0 7 9  
K Y 0 0 2 0 0 8 7  
K Y 0 0 2 0 0 9 5  

* I f  wastewater ( 

Available: 
KYPOOOOlS 
K Y P 0 0 0 0 3 2  
K Y P 0 0 0 0 3 4  
K Y P 0 0 0 0 3 5  
KYPOOOO36 
K Y P 0 0 0 0 3 7  
K Y P 0 0 0 0 3 8  
K Y P 0 0 0 0 3 9  
KYPOOO040 
K Y P 0 0 0 0 4 1  

:ollection project, KIMOP# (s) 

Selected: 
N o n e  Selected 

: Legal Applicant: G r a n t  C o u n t y  S a n i t a r y  S e w e r  Dis t r ic t  

Wastewater Utility which will own proposed improvements: 
(if different from Legal Applicant) 

* Organizational Structure: S a n i t a t i o n  n i s t r i c t  

~ittp://wris.ky.gov/ppfonn/KIA~ProfileForm.asp?ID= (B678CDFA-4B61-4ADF-894F-8 1 ... 10/12/2009 



~ ____ ~ _ _ _ _  ~ ~ 

Authorized Official Information 

* First Name 

* Title 

* Street Address Line 1: 

Street Address Line 2: 

* P.O. Box: 

* City: 

* County: 

* Telephone: 

Fax: 

Email: 

Bobby * Last Name: Burr less 

Ch a i rma n 

Grant Go. Sanitary Sewer Dis t r ic t  

4 60 

Cri t t enden 

Grant 

( 8 5 9 1  428-2112 Ext: 

859-428-1293 

bullockpen@fuse net 

M.I.: 

Contact Person Information 

* First Name: Paula * Last Name: MaSSle 

* Title: Office Manager 

* Street Address Line 1: 

Street Address Line 2: 

* P.O BOX: 460 

* City: Crittenden 

* County: Grant 

* Telephone: 859-428-2112 Ext: 

Fax: 859-428-1293 

Email: bullockpen@fuse. net 

M.I.:  

Project Administrator Information 

State: KY Zip: 40475 

* First Name K e r r y  * Last Name. Odle M I  

Title Project Engineer 

Street Address Line 1 1 3 8  N Keeneland Dr 

Street Address Line 2 Suite E 

P O  Box. 831 

City. Richmond 

County. Madison 

* Telephone. 859-623-2966 Ext: 

Fax: 

Email kodle@cmwaec corn 

- - - - ” _ _ _ _  - -  - -  
Consulting Engineer Information 

* First Name. Kerry * Last Name. Odle M I  

Firm. CMW, Inc 

Street Address Line 1. 138 N Keeneland Drive 

Street Address Lme 2 Suite E 

P O  BOX. 8 3 1  

City Richmond 

County. Madison 

* Telephone. 8 5 9-623-2 96 6 

Fax 859-623-0886 

Emarl kodle@cmwaec corn 

Ext: 

http://wris.ky.gov/ppfonn/KIA - ProfileFonn.asp?ID=(B678CDFA-4B61-4ADF-894F-8 1 ... 1 0/12/2009 
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4.* Pro ject  TyDe fa t leas t  one requ i red /check  a l l  t ha t  apply); 

@Sewer System Evaluation Survey Report 

@Design 

F Construction 

Management 

Pro ject  A l ternat ives:  Please l i s t  a m i n i m u m  of t h r e E  
a * lio a c t i o n  

Facilities Planning 

5. 

b *  P r e s s u r i z e d  sewer  sys tem 

C *  Vacuum sewer s y s L e m  

6 .  

7. * 

8. * 

9. 

SBe_cjal I m p a c t ( s )  of Proposed Was tewa te r  P_rojeztr 

a * New service/improve service t o  190 unserved 0 underserved households 

b Number of new jobs: 0 Number of  retained jobs. 0 

c Other beneficial technical, managerial, fiscal impacts: (20 words or less) 
3 s m a l l  w a s t e w a t e r  t r e a t m e n t  p l a n t s  a r e  t a k e n  o u t  of s e r v i c e  

,,.. 

d.* Does proposed activity relate to public health protection emergency: (:?Yes 

e.* Does project involve regionalization: [@Yes 

f.. Number of systems affected/involved: 3 

Median Household I n c o m e  of Service Area: 

@NO 

(.->No 

$ 3 8 4 3 8  

m e c t  S ta r t  Schedule: 

@Years 0-2 (:!Years 3-10 OYears 11-20 
Est imated Fundins Sources: 

* Estimated Local Funding Amount $ 2 6 8 7 0 0  

* Estimated Other Funding Amount (all sources) $ 2601300 

Total Estimated Project Cost 

10. Pro jec t  Data - Wastewater  (complete a l l  i t e m s  w h i c h  apply  t o  th is  discrete p ro jec t )  

a.* Is project related to modifications t o  treatment plant? C)Yes 

b e *  Is project related to new collector sewer construction? $+Yes 

Total linear feet 30080 

c.* Is project related to new interceptor sewer construction? ':>Yes 

d.* Is project related to sewer rehab? @Yes ::)No 

@No 

<.')No 

,-. 
:*;No 

Total linear feet 1500 

e. Number of lift stations required 5 

f. Management (describe) 

g.* Does your agency currently provide sewer service (.)Yes @;No 

TABLE 1: COST 

Category 

Secondary Advanced Sewer  Collector In te rceptor  Corn bined 

http://wris.ky.gov/ppform/KIA~ProfileFonn~asp?ID= (B678CDFA-4B6 I -4ADF-894F-8 I ... 10/12/2009 



Treatment  Trea tment  I/I R e m o v a l  Rehab Sewers Sewers  S e w e r  Over f lows NPS Urban 

0 0 0 0 2 8 7 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 

Estimated Project Cost: $ 12870000 

Allocated: $ ~ 8 7 0 0 0 0  
---....-.-- 

..-.."--..-.I 

Remaining Funds: $ 10 

TABLE 2: NEEDS 

Publ ic Hea l th  Concerns 
as a resu l ts  o f  t h i s  Project  

Number  o f  
Raw Tota l  No. 

Sewage o f  WWTPs 
Discharges Number  of  Fa i l ing  Sept ic Sept ic Systems t o  be  t o  b e  
El iminated Systems E l im ina ted  El iminated E l im ina ted  

0 

KPDES No. 

1 5  35 

N a m e  o f  P lan t  E l im ina ted  

KY0083631 Grant Mobile Home Park 

KY0080080 K . 0  A. 

3 

Average 
Des ign  
Flow 

(MGD) 

0 

0 

0.012 

0 

0.005 

Tota l  
Average 

Design Flow 
f r o m  

El iminated 
WWTPs 
(MGD) 

KY0091031 Blackwell Mobile Home Park 0 041 

* Date Project was approved by the Area Water Management Planning Council: 02/09/2004 

0 . 0 5 8  

http://wris.ky.gov/ppform/KIA~ProfileFo~n.asp?I~={B678CDFA-4B61-4ADF-894F-8 I ... 10/12/2009 







PRELIMINARY PROJECT COST 

GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION PHASE I 
May 19,2009 

1 ~ Construction Cost 

2. Legal 

3. Acquisition 

4. Easements 

5. Preliminary Engineering 

6. Engineering Design (8.40%) 

7. Resident Inspection (5.23%) 

8. SSESStudy 

9. Staking 

I O .  Grant Administration 

11. Railroad Permit 

12. Environmental 

13. Archeologist 

14. Biologist 

15. Contingencies 

$1,372,0 18.00 

$ 25,000.00 

$ 75,000.00 

$ 35,000.00 

$ 10,000.00 

$ 115,250.00 

$ 71,757.00 

$ 10,000.00 

$ 15,000.00 

$ 15,000.00 

$ 20,000.00 

$ 10,000.00 

$ 6,000.00 

$ 7,000.00 

$ 137,975.00 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $1,925,000.00 

FUNDING 

1. KIA 2005 Grant $ 900,000.00 

2. KIA 2008 Grant $ 400,000.00 

3. KIA 2008 Grant $ 250,000.00 

4. Grant MHP (Cost of Pump Station) $ 45,000.00 

5. Tap-on Fees 76 $ 30,000.00 

6. Stimulus Grant $ 300,000.00 

TOTAL FUNDING $1,925,000.00 



PRELIMINARY CONSTRUCTION ESTIMATE 

GRANT COUNTY SEWER EXTENSION PHASE I 

May 19,2009 

1. 8” PVC Sanitary Sewer 
8,935 LF @ $34/LF 

2. 4” PVC Sanitary Sewer Laterals 
945 LF @$28/LF 

3. PVC Force Main 
20,452 LF @$lO/LF 

4. Small Diameter Force Main 
7,883 LF @ $6/LF 

5. Connection to Existing Manhole 
2 EA @ $2,00O/EA 

6. Connecting to Grant MHP w/Master Meter 
1 EA @$12,000 

7. Connection to Campground w/Master Meter 
I EA @ $10,000 

8. Manholes 
43 EA @ $2400/EA 

9. Drop Manhole 
3 EA @ $800/EA 

I O .  Clean Outs 
71 EA @ $250/EA 

11. Railroad Bore 
210 I...F @ $210/LF 

12. 1-75’ Force Main Bore 
250 LF @ $160/LF 

13. Road Bore for Gravity Sewer 
35 LF @ $160/LF 

14. Open Cut Bore far Force Main 
40 LF @ $80/LF 

15. Concrete Caps over Sewer Main 
460 LF @ $75/LF 

16. Sewage Combination Air Valve 
13 EA @ $1800/EA 

17. 2” Gate Valve 
2 EA @ $4OO/EA 

18. 2” Check Valve 
2 EA @ $500/EA 

19. Submersible Pump Station 
2 EA @ $70,00O/EA 

$ 303,790.00 

$ 26,460.00 

$ 204,520.00 

$ 47,298.00 

$ 4,000.00 

$ 12,000.00 

$ 10,000.00 

$ 103,200.00 

$ 2,400.00 

$ 17,750.00 

$ 44,100.00 

$ 40,000.00 

$ 5,600.00 

$ 3,200.00 

$ 34,500.00 

$ 23,400.00 

$ 800.00 

$ 1,000.00 

$ 140,000.00 



20. Submersible Grinder Pump Station 
4 EA @ $45,000/EA $ 180,000.00 

21. Individual Grinder Pumps 
22 EA @ $6,500/EA $ 143,000.00 

22. Miscellaneous Valves on Small Diameter FM 
1 LUMP SUM @ $25,000 !$ 25,000.00 

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST $1,372,018.00 





EXHIBIT “5” 
(Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 

Grant Assistance Agreement for 
$900 ,O 00.00) 



fS r.: rz ! \I E D , LA*, v - I d 
KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

INFRASTRUCTURE FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND FOR 
TOBACCO/COAL PRODUCING COUNTIES 2005 s ~ p  I c\ A io: 110 

PROJECT NUMBER: 

GRANT AMOUNT: 

GRANTEE: 

DATE OF AGREEMENT: 

--- SX21081303 

$900,000 

Grant County Sanitation District 

,/Oz-K-Df - 
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GRANT ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

This Grant Assistance Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 
date, L 2-8 ---l 20081 by and between the KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE 
AUTHdRITY (“Authority”), a body corporate and politic, constituting a public corporation 
and governmental agency and instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, and 
the Grant County Sanitation District (“Grantee”). 

W I T N E S S  

WHEREAS, the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, at its 
1988 Regular Session, amended Chapter 224A of the Kentucky Revised Statutes (the 
“Act“), creating the “Kentucky Infrastructure Authority” to serve the public purposes 
identified in the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority, an agency of the Commonwealth attached to the 
Governor’s Office, is charged pursuant to KKS 224A.300 with coordinating the 
implementation of infrastructure projects and to this end maintains within the Water 
Resource Information System, a comprehensive database of profiles of each 
community’s water and wastewater projects; and 

WHEREAS, the 2005 General Assembly included in the Commonwealth’s 2004- 
2006 biennial Budget funding for the Grantee’s infrastructure project, the subject of this 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee now seeks to implement the Project as identified in the 
2004-2006 Budget of the Commonwealth and the Authority has determined that the 
Project is a Project within the meaning of the Act, and has been shown to be consistent 
with the Area Water Management Plan where applicable; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee and the Authority desire to enter into this Agreement 
which sets forth their respective duties, rights, covenants, and obligations with respect 
to the acquisition, construction and financing of the Project described in the Grantee’s 
Project Profile. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained 
herein and for the other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, mutuality and 
sufficiency of all of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties hereto, the Authority 
and the Grantee each agree as follows: 
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SECTION I - DEFINITIONS 

All terms utilized herein shall have the same definitions and meaning as ascribed 
to them in the Act, which are hereby incorporated in this Agreement by reference, the 
same as if set forth hereby verbatim; provided, however, that those definitions utilized in 
the Act having general application are hereby modified in certain instances to apply 
specifically to the Grantee and its Project. 

Act shall mean Chapter 224A of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, as amended. 

Agreement shall mean this Agreement made and entered into by and between 
the Grantee and the Authority, as authorized by the Act, providing for a Grant to the 
governmental agency, unit of government, or private, investor-owned water system by 
the Authority. 

Area Water Management Council shall mean the council designated as the 
planning body for the area, which shall prepare the Area Water Management Plan and 
approve all Project Profiles for water and wastewater projects. 

Area Water Management Plan shall mean the plan that identifies current and 
future water supply, drinking water, and wastewater service needs of the area. 

Authority shall mean the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority created by the Act as 
amended, a body corporate and politic, constituting a public corporation and a 
governmental agency and instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, or such 
other designation as may be effected by future amendments to the Act. 

Engineer(s) shall mean the professional engineer or firm of professional 
engineers properly procured by the Grantee in connection with the Project identified in the 
Project Profile Database. 

Grantee shall mean any governmental agency or unit of government or any 
private, investor owned utility within the Commonwealth eligible for funding under the 
Program in accordance with the Act, now having been or hereafter being granted the 
authority and power to finance, acquire, construct, and operate a Project, and for the 
purposes of this Agreement shall mean that entity identified in the Project Profile. 

Grant shall mean the funds effected under this Agreement from the Authority to 
the Grantee in the principal amount set forth in the 2004-2006 Budget of the 
Commonwealth, for the purpose of defraying the costs incidental to the Project. 

Kentucky Water Management Plan shall mean the guide and strategy that 
incorporates and analyzes each Area Water Management Plan and provides an 
assessment of future needs and allocation of funding for water and wastewater services 
throughout the Commonwealth. 
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Program shall mean the program authorized by KRS 224A.035 for the Authority to 
engage in a program of assistance to designated entities with respect to the construction 
and acquisition of water and wastewater infrastructure projects. 

Project shall mean, when used generally, water, wastewater or other 
infrastructure project authorized pursuant to the Act, and when used in specific reference 
to the Grantee, the Project described in the Project Profile. 

Project Administrator shall mean that individual designated in writing to the 
Authority by the Grantee, who has the responsibility of supervising the Project and 
coordinating the preparation of all documentation with respect to the Project. 

Project Budget shall mean a list of Project expenses and funding sources, in the 
form set forth in Exhibit 1. 

Project Profile shall mean those specific details of the Project, approved by the 
Area Water Management Council as being consistent with the Area Water Management 
Plan. 

Rates and Charges shall mean an approved schedule of charges, based on 
actual cost of service, to adequately provide for retirement of any related debt obligation 
and to provide for proper operation of the Project. 

System shall mean the utility system owned and operated by the Grantee of 
which the Project shall become a part and from the earnings of which System shall be 
operated, maintained and insured. 

SECTION 2 - OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY 

The Authority covenants and agrees, conditioned upon the timely performance by the 
other party of its respective obligations, to undertake the following obligations: 

A. The Authority shall pay to the Grantee the grant sum in an amount not to exceed 
$900,000. 

B. The Authority may make periodic reviews of the Project progress and may make 
inspections of the Project and send inspection reports to the Grantee. 
Deficiencies identified in the inspection report shall be corrected by the Grantee 
and the correction reported in writing to the Authority within two weeks of receipt 
of the Authority’s inspection report. 

C. The Authority shall cooperate with the Grantee in order to facilitate the 
obligations set out in this Agreement. 
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SECTION 3 - OBLIGATIONS OF THE GRANTEE 

The Grantee covenants and agrees to undertake the following obligations: 

A. The Grantee shall, before any funds are released, sign and submit the 
Agreement, and complete and include the following Exhibits which are 
incorporated herein and made a part hereof: 

I .  Before the Project is bid, the Grantee shall complete and submit to the 
Authority the following: 

a) A Project description in the form of a Project Profile together with the 
estimated Project Budget, as Exhibit 1. 

b) A copy of the Grantee’s resolution, as Exhibit 2, accepting the grant 
award, amending its budget to allow for receipt and expenditures of these 
funds, and authorizing a designated individual to execute the Agreement 
and all other documentation related to the Project. 

c) The opinion of legal counsel substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit 3 
hereto. 

d) A Statement of Agreement to adopt and use the Kentucky Uniform System 
of Accounting (KUSoA) and assure that rates and charges for water 
service are based upon the cost or providing such service as Exhibit 4, if 
applicable. 

e) A schedule of current rates and charges. If there will be a change in the 
current rate structure as a result of this project, provide the proposed 
schedule of rates and charges. 

9 Documentation of Clearinghouse Endorsement and Clearinghouse 
Comments. 

g) An Application for Electronic Transfer of Funds, as Exhibit 6. 

h) A Certification of Funding as Exhibit 11. 

i) Any additional covenants or agreements that may be required included in 
Exhibit 7. 

2. After Project is bid, the Grantee shall complete and submit to the Authority 
the following: 

A revised Project Budget based on Project bids, as Exhibit 1. 

The opinion of legal counsel substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit 5 
hereto. 
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6. The Grantee may request receipt of Grant funds after completion of items in 
Sections 3. A. 1. and 2. above and full execution of the Agreement. The 
Authority, upon receipt of Request for Payment and Project Status Report 
Exhibit 8, will release funds. The Request for Payment and Project Status 
Report must include copies of invoices for costs incurred. The Authority may 
withhold release of funds until receipt of Administrative Fee pursuant to 
Section 7. 

C. The Grantee shall perform and/or cause to be performed all necessary acts 
(consistent with KRS 45A and in accordance with applicable laws) to plan, design 
and construct the Project including: the procurement of land, easements and 
rights of way; professional services, including but not limited to architectural and 
engineering services; construction contractor(s); and equipment and/or materials. 

D. The Grantee shall obtain all necessary permits, licenses and approvals from the 
appropriate federal, state, and/or local governmental entities prior to construction 
of the Project. Further, the Grantee shall require all construction contractors to 
pay wages pursuant to applicable prevailing wage rates (federal or state) for all 
work relating to the subject Project. 

E. The Grantee shall include Exhibit 10 in the engineer’s contract for this project 
and remuneration of engineering services will be based on the fee schedule 
included in the exhibit. 

F. The Grantee shall comply with all applicable federal and state statutes, executive 
orders, regulatory requirements, and policies relating to the planning and 
construction of the Project. 

G. The Grantee shall provide to the Authority access to all records related to the 
Project for review in determining compliance with the Grant Agreement and all 
applicable laws and regulations. The Grantee shall retain all records, including 
all invoices, relating to the Project for three years after full execution of Exhibit 9 
- Certificate of Completion. 

H. The Grantee shall cooperate fully with the Authority and provide any 
documentation requested by the Authority in order to facilitate the obligations set 
out in this Agreement. 

I. Any unauthorized or improper expenditure of funds, or expenditure of funds other 
than in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, shall be deemed a default 
of this Agreement by the Grantee. 

J. The Grantee will proceed expeditiously with and complete the Project in 
accordance with the approved final design, plans and specifications or 
amendments thereto, prepared by the Project Engineer for the Grantee and as 
approved by the appropriate state and federal agencies. 
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K. 

L. 

M. 

N. 

The Grantee agrees that throughout the reasonable life of the infrastructure 
facilities developed under this Project it will retain ownership of, operate, and 
maintain these facilities, and all appurtenances thereto, keeping them in good 
and sound repair and good operating condition at its own expense so that the 
completed Project will continue to provide the services for which it was designed. 
Change of ownership or disposal of the Project facilities may occur only with 
written approval of the Authority. 

The Grantee agrees that it will at all times impose, charge and collect sufficient 
customer Rates and Charges. 

The Grantee shall, within 3 months of initiation of construction of the Project, 
submit to the Authority, Final Design Plans in an AutoCAD Drawing File Format 
(DWG), referenced to the appropriate (North or South) Kentucky State Plane 
Coordinate System (NAD83-Survey Feet) on a Compact Disc (CD). If there is a 
significant deviation from the Final Design Plan during construction, As-built 
plans shall also be provided to the Authority, within three months of construction 
completion, in the same format. 

The Grantee shall submit the fully executed Certificate of Completion once all 
Project construction related activities are complete. Exhibit 9. 

SECTION 4 - MUTUALITY OF OBLIGATIONS 

A. The parties agree that the funds granted by the Commonwealth to the Grantee 
are to be used solely for the purposes of implementing the Project. Further the 
parties agree that the obligations imposed upon them are for their respective 
benefit and the timely fulfillment of each and every obligation in accordance with 
this Agreement is necessary. The failure of either party to fulfill its obligations 
under this Agreement shall constitute a breach of same. 

5. In the event of default by the Grantee, including the failure to take actions 
directed herein and/or to comply with time deadlines set out in this Agreement, 
the Authority may declare this Agreement void from the beginning without further 
obligation to the Grantee and may commence appropriate legal action to enforce 
its rights under this Agreement including action for recovery of funds expended 
hereunder. 

C. Except as may otherwise be provided herein, the parties to this Agreement shall 
be solely responsible for any costs incurred in fulfilling their respective obligations 
under this Agreement and neither party shall have any claim against the other 
party for reimbursement of costs whether or not a party is in default. 
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SECTION 5 - TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

A. All funds made available under this Agreement are subject to reauthorization by 
subsequent General Assemblies of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. Should 
funding for the Project not be reauthorized this agreement shall terminate. 

B. This Agreement shall be valid only after all signatories have signed. 

C. This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time for cause and may 
be terminated by either party without cause upon 30 days written notice to the 
other party. Termination of this Agreement shall not diminish or in any other 
manner affect any other remedy that may be available to the parties for any 
breach of the Agreement that occurs prior to the termination. 

D. If additional financial assistance for this project becomes available to the Grantee 
after execution of this agreement, the amount of the assistance from the 
Authority shall be recalculated with the inclusion of the additional assistance, and 
the Grantee shall pay to the Authority the amount, if any, by which the grant 
actually made, exceeds the grant as determined by the recalculation. 

SECTION 6 -ADVANCE FUNDING FOR PROJECT PLANNING AND DESIGN 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

The Grantee may request, in writing, that a portion of the grant funds be 
disbursed prior to Project bidding to pay a portion of the cost of Project planning 
and design directly related to submission of the Project plans and specifications 
for review by the Division of Water and the Public Service Commission, as may 
be required. 

It is specifically understood and agreed by the Grantee, in the event that the 
Project has not commenced construction by June 30, 2009, for whatever reason, 
all grant funds disbursed for Project planning and design are subject to full and 
immediate repayment to the Authority. 

Funds disbursed under this Section of the Agreement shall not exceed 50% of 
the Project planning and design amount as established in the guidelines as set 
forth in Exhibit 10. 

Funds received under provisions of this Section shall be used solely for planning 
and design costs of the Project. 

No funds shall be released under this Section until the requirements of Section 3. 
A. 1. of this Agreement have been met. 

8 



SECTION 7 - ADMINISTRATIVE FEE 

The Grantee agrees to pay to the Authority an administrative fee (the 
“Administrative Fee”) equal to % of 1% of the principal amount of the Grant. The 
Administrative Fee shall be due and payable on the date the Grantee’s initial 
Request for Payment and Project Status Report is submitted to the Authority. 

SECTION 8 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

A. This Agreement may be signed by each party on a separate copy, and in such 
case one counterpart of this Agreement shall consist of a sufficient number of 
such copies to reflect the signature of each party hereto. This Agreement may 
be executed in two or more counterparts each of that shall be deemed an 
original, and it shall not be necessary in making proof of this Agreement or the 
terms and conditions hereof to produce or account for more than one of such 
counterparts . 

B. The headings set forth in this Agreement are only for convenience or reference 
and the words contained therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, 
amplify or aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of 
this Agreement. 

C. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure 
to the benefit of the successor and assigns, respectively, of the parties. This 
provision shall not be construed to permit an assignment by any party of any of 
its rights and duties under this Agreement which assignment shall be prohibited 
except with the prior written consent of the parties hereto. 

D. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties with respect to 
the subject matter hereof, and may be modified only by a written instrument duly 
executed by each of the parties hereto. 

E. Timely and accurate performance of all actions by the respective parties are 
mutually recognized by the parties hereto to be of great importance to the 
citizens of the Commonwealth generally, and particularly to those citizens directly 
affected by the Project subject of this Agreement. 

F. The parties agree that any suit, action or proceeding with respect to this 
Agreement may only be brought into or entered by, as the case may be, the 
courts of the Commonwealth of Kentucky situated in Frankfort, Franklin County, 
Kentucky or the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Kentucky, 
Frankfort Division. 

G. The Authority may audit or review all documentation and records of the Grantee 
relating to this Project pursuant to the provisions of KRS 45A.150. 
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H. The Grantee agrees that the Authority, the Finance and Administration Cabinet, 
the Auditor of Public Accounts, and the Legislative Research Commission, or 
their duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any books, 
documents, papers, records, or other evidence, which are directly pertinent to 
this contract for the purpose of financial audit or program review. Furthermore, 
any books, documents, papers records, or other evidence provided to the 
Commonwealth, the Finance and Administration Cabinet, the Auditor of Public 
Accounts, or the Legislative Research Cornmission which are directly pertinent to 
the contract shall be subject to public disclosure regardless of the proprietary 
nature of the information, unless specific information is identified and exempted 
and agreed to by the Secretary of the Finance and Administration Cabinet as 
meeting the provisions of KRS 61.878(1)(c) prior to the execution of the contract. 
The Secretary of the Finance and Administration Cabinet shall not restrict the 
public release of any information which would otherwise be subject to public 
release if a state government agency was providing the services. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed by their respective duly authorized officers as of the day and year above 
written. 

GRANT COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT ATTEST 

EXAMINED 

LEGAL C 
KENTUC 

By: 

Tit1 
f 
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REQUIRED EXHIBITS 

Exhibit 1 

Exhibit 2 

Exhibit 3 

Exhibit 4 

Exhibit 5 

Exhibit 6 

Exhibit 7 

Exhibit 8 

Exhibit 9 

Exhibit 10 

Exhibit 11 

- Project Profile and Project Budget 

- Resolution 

- Opinion of Counsel Relating to Agreement Execution 

- Statement of Agreement Regarding KUSoA & Cost-Based Rates 

- Opinion of Counsel Regarding Agreement Obligations 

- Application for Electronic Transfer of Funds 

- Additional Covenants and Agreements (when applicable) 

- 

- Certificate of Completion 

Request for Payment and Project Status Report 

- Fees For Professional Engineering Services Percentage Of 
Construction Cost 

- Funding Certification 

11 



EXHIBIT I 

PROJECT PROFILE & PROJECT BUDGET 

SX21081303 

GRANT COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
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SUBMITTED Form: Kentucky Wastewater Prqject Profile Page 1 o f 6  

KENTUCKY 
WASTEWATER 

PROJECT PROFILE 

Areas indicated with (*) are required fields. 

1.. Project Title (use title which will be identifiable by local community): 

2.* Project Description: 
Provide a brief narrative denoting if project relates to source, distribution, treatment, storage 

including connection to public system and elimination of  Grant MI-IP, Blackwell 
MHP and KOA wastewater treatment plants serving a total of  190 new customers. 

* Project Descriptor: 

* WRIS Project Number (PNUM): F-- 
This nutnber is assigned by an ADD through the respective Area Watei Management Planning Council once the project profi 
by the  Council This number ties each project t o  mapped/spatial information in the Water Resource Information System (LA 
profiles without this number AND the required corresponding inapped/spaLial information will NOT be accepted 

* I s  it a multi-county project: C Yes @, No 

* I f  wastewater project, KPDES#(s): 

Available : 

KYO 02 0 0 10 I KYO 02 0 03 6 
IKY002 0 044 I 

KYO 02 0 0 6 1 I KY 0 02 0 07 9 
KY 0 02 0 0 87 
KY 002 0 0 95 
KY 002 0 117 

elected : 
CY0091634 

* I f  wastewater collection project, KIMOP#(s) 

Ava i I a b I e : Selected : 

http://wris.ky.gov/ppform/KIA~ProfileFonn.asp?ID= (R678CDFA-4B61-4ADF-894F-8 1 ... 10/10/20O5 



SUBMITTED Fotin: Kentucky Wastewater Project Profile Page 2 ot 6 

KYPOO 0 01 5 
KYPO 0 0 03 2 
KY PO 0 0 03 4 
KY PO0 0 03 5 
KYPOOO 03 6 
KYP000037 
KYP00003 8 
KYPOOO 03 9 
KYP000040 I I -  KY PO 0 0 0 4 1 

3. Leqal Applicant 

Wastewater lJtility which will own proposed improvements: 
(if different from Legal Applicant) 

* Organizational Structure: 

Authorized Official Information 

* First Name: IBobb\i * Last Name: ]Burgess 

* Title: J C h a i r m a n  

* Street Address Line 1: 

Street Address Line 2: 

* P.O. Box: 

* State: IKY * zip: . -  . * City: 

Fax: 859-428-1293 

Email: 

Contact Person Information 

* First Name: * Last Name: M.I.: r 

http://wi-is.ky,gov/ppfoni~KIA~ProfileForrn.asp?ID= (B678CDFA-4B6 I -4ADF-894F-8 I . .  . 10/10/2005 



STJBMITTED Form: K.entucky Wastewater Project Profile Page 3 o f 6  

i Title: Manager 

* Street Address Line 1: 

Street Address Line 2: I 
* P.O. Box:l460 

* City: * State: /KY * zip 

Project Administrator Information 

* First Name: - _  Paula : * Last Name: 7 
Title: Off ice Manager 

Street Address Line 1: rr 
Street Address Line 2: 

_-_, . . 
P. 0. Box : g-- 

State: I;;;; zip: (41030 

* Telephone: 859-428-2112  .. ~ 

Fax: 859-428-1293 - __ . 

Ext: I 

pen@fuse.net 

Consulting Engineer Information 

Street Address Line 2: ISuite . .  E i 

P.O. Box: 

City: State: IKY zip: 

County : 

* Telephone: 1859-623-2  9 6 6  Ext: 1 

M.I.: [p; 

Fax: 1859-623-0886  

4.* Proiect Type (atleast one required/check all that app&J; 

http://wris. ky.gov/ppfomn/KIA - ProfileForni.asp?ID= { R678CDFA-4B6 1 -4ADF-894F- 8 1.. . 1 O/ 10/2005 

mailto:pen@fuse.net
http://wris


SUBMITTED Forin: Kentucky Wastewater Project Profile Page 4 of 6 

5. 

6. 

7.* 

8. * 

9. 

10. 

Facilities Planning 

Sewer System Evaluation Survey Report 

IF Design 

YS: Construction 

r- Management 

a.* 

b. * 

C. * 

Project Alternatives: Please list a minimum of three: 

Special Impact(s) of Proposed Wastewater Proj& 

a.* New service/improve service to I'"" unserved 

b. Number of new jobs: ]o 
c, Other beneficial technical, managerial, fiscal impacts: (20 words or less) 

underserved household! 

Number of retained jobs: 1"- 

d.* Does proposed activity relate to public health protection emergency: r Yes 

e.* Does project involve regionalization: @ Yes C No 

f. Number of systems affected/involved: I" 
Median Household Income of Service Area: 

@ No 

$ I T  
Project Start Schedule: 
0 Years 0-2 C Years 3-10 c Years 11-20 

Estimated Fundins Sources: 

* Estimated Local Funding Amount $ r- 
* Estimated Other Funding Amount (all sources) $ 

Total Estimated Project Cost $ )1970000 

Project Data - Wastewater (complete all items which apply to this discrete project) 
a.* Is  project related to modifications to treatment plant? c' Yes G No 

b.* Is  project related to new collector sewer construction? Yes C No 

Total linear feet pr- 
c.* Is project related to new interceptor sewer construction? Yes @ No 

http://wris.ky.gov/ppfonn/KIA~ProfileFonn.asp?ID={ B678CDFA-4B61-4ADF-894F-8 1 ... 10/10/2005 



SUBMITTED Form: Kentucky Wastewater Project Profile Page 5 ot 6 

d.* Is  project related to sewer rehab? @ Yes C No 

Total linear feet 

Number of lift stations required e. 

g.* Does your agency currently provide sewer service r Yes No 

TABLE 1: COST 

Category 

Secondary Advanced Sewer Collector I n te rcep to r  Combine 
Treatment  Treatment  1/1 Removal Rehab Sewers Sewers Sewer Overf 

I"- 1 0 7  lo 

Number  of 
Raw 

Sewage 
Discharges 
El iminated 

r 

KPDES No. 

w i  
I-- 

Estimated Project Cost: $ 11970000 . :  ' 

Allocated: $ 

Remaining Funds: $ 1-7 

TABLE 2: NEEDS 

Public Heal th Concerns 
as a resul ts  of th is  Pro jec t  

Number of Fai l ing Septic Septic Systems t o  be  
Systems El iminated El iminated 

v F-7 

Name of Plant  El iminated 

F . 0 . A .  

I 

1 

De 
Total  No. 
of WWTPs El 

to be 
El iminated 

Average 
Design 
Flow 

(MGD) 

http://wris.ky.gov/ppform/KIA~ProfileFonn.asp?ID= { B678CDFA-4B6 1 -4ADF-894F-8 1 ... 10/10/2005 



StJBMITTED Fotin: Kentucky Wastewater Project Protile l’age 6 oi 6 

* Date Project was approved by the Area Water Management Planning Council: 

http://wris.ky.gov/ppfot~~I~IA~ProfileFor1~~.as~?ID={B678CDFA-4B6 1-4ADF-894F-8 1 ... I 0/10/2005 



PRELIM (NARY PROJECT COST 

GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION PHASE I 
December 15,2008 

1. Construction Cost 

2. Legal 

3. Acquisition 

4. Easements 

5. Preliminary Engineering 

6. Engineering Design (8.5%) 

7. Resident Inspection (5.3%) 

8. SSES Study 

9. Staking 

I O .  Railroad Permit 

11 Archeologist 

12. Contingencies 

$1,300,548.00 

$ 20,000.00 

$ 25,000.00 

$ 25,000.00 

$ 10,000.00 

$ 110,547.00 

$ 68,929.00 

$ 10,000.00 

$ 10,000.00 

$ 20,000.00 

$ 10,000.00 

$ 129,976.00 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $1,740,000.00 

FUNDING 

1. KIA 2005 Grant 

2. KIA 2008 Grant 

3. KIA 2008 Grant 

$ 900,000.00 

$ 400,000.00 

$ 250,000.00 

4. Grant MHP (Cost of Pump Station) $ 70,000.00 

5. Tap-on Fees 76 @ $1,00O/Ea $ 76,000.00 

6. GCSSD Contribution $ 44,000.OQ 

TOTAL FUNDING $1,740,000.00 



PRELIMINARY CONSTRUCTION ESTIMATE 

GRANT COUNTY SEWER EXTENSION PHASE I 

December 15,2008 

1. 8" PVC Sanitary Sewer 
8,980 LF @ $34/LF 

2. 4 PVC Sanitary Sewer Laterals 
1456 LF @$28/LF 

3. PVC Force Main 
18,170 LF @$I O/LF 

4. Small Diameter Force Main 
5,910 LF @ $6/LF 

5. Connection to Existing Manhole 
2 EA @ $2,00O/EA 

6. Connecting to Grant MHP w/Master Meter 
1 EA @$12,000 

7. Connection to Campground w/Master Meter 
1 EA @ $10,000 

8. Manholes 
32 EA @ $2400/EA 

9. Railroad Bore 
120 LF @ $21O/LF 

I O .  1-75' Force Main Bore 
350 LF @ $1 60/LF 

11. Road Bore for Gravity Sewer 
100 LF @ $160/LF 

12. Road Bore for Force Main 
90 LF @ $12O/LF 

13. Concrete Caps over Sewer Main 
200 LF @ $75/LF 

14. Sewage Combination Air Valve 
10 EA @ $1 800/EA 

15. Submersible Pump Station 
3 EA @ $70,00O/EA 

16. Submersible Grinder Pump Station 

17. Individual Grinder Pumps 
19 EA @ $6,50O/EA 

18. Miscellaneous Valves on Small Diameter FM 
1 LUMP SUM @ $25,000 

3 EA $~~,QOO/EA 

$ 305,320.00 

$ 40,768.00 

$ 181,700.00 

$ 35,460.00 

$ 4,000.00 

$ 12,000.00 

$ 10,000.00 

$ 76,800.00 

$ 25,200.00 

$ 56,000.00 

$ 16,000.00 

$ 10,800.00 

$ 15,000.00 

$ 18,000.00 

$ 210,000.00 

$ 135,000.00 

$ 123,500.00 

$ 25,000.00 

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST $1,300,548.00 
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EXHIBIT 2 

RESOLUTION 
SX21081303 

RESOLUTION OF THE GRANT COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
(GRANTEE) ACCEPTING THE GRANT, APPROVING THE GRANT 
AGREEMENT, AUTHORIZING THE AMENDMENT OF LOCAL BUDGET, 
AND AUTHORIZING A RESPRESENTATIVE TO SIGN ALL RELATED 
DOCUMENTS 

WHEREAS, the General Assembly has appropriated funds for infrastructure 
projects in the 2004-2006 Budget of the Commonwealth; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee has previously determined that it is in the public 
interest to acquire and construct certain facilities and improvements to the Grantee's utility 
system (the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee desires funding from the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 
(the "Authority") for the purpose of acquisition and construction of the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Grant 
Countv Sanitary Sewer District as follows: 

SECTION 1. That the Grantee hereby accepts the grant award and approves the 
Agreement between the Grantee and the Authority substantially in the form on file with the 
Grantee for the purpose of providing a portion of the necessary financing to the Grantee for 
the acquisition and construction of the Project. 

SECTION 2. That Bobby Burgess is hereby authorized, directed and empowered by 
the Grantee to execute the Agreement and all other necessary documents or agreements, 
and to otherwise act on behalf of the Grantee to implement the Project. 

SECTION 3. That the Grantee hereby includes in its annual budget the receipt and 
expenditures of funds subject to the Agreement with the Authority. 

SECTION 4. This Agreement shall take effect immediately upon passage. 

ADOPTED on August 17,2005. 

, (Representative) 

14 



(Page 2 of 2) 
CERTIFICATE 

SX21081303 

GRANT COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting 

Secretan/ of the Grant Countv Sanitaw Sewer District-; that the foregoing is a 

full, true and correct copy of a Resolution adopted by the governing authority of said 

Grantee at a meeting duly held on August 17 , 2 0 0 5 ;  that said official action appears as 

a matter of public record in the official records or journal of the governing authority; that 

said meeting was held in accordance with all applicable requirements of Kentucky law, 

including KRS 61.810, 61.815, 61.820 and 61.825; that a quorum was present at said 

meeting; that said official action has not been modified, amended, revoked or repealed and 

is now in full force and effect. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness by me this 17th day of August , 2 0 0 5 .  

/‘7 

15 



MARTIN J. HORWITZ. t 

THOMAS R. NIENABER 0 
CHAD S. LEVIN * 
J. THOMAS MELLOTT 
JENNIFER M. GATHERWRIGHT * 
JOY 1,. HALL o 
TIMOTHY J. BYLAND 0 

THE HORWITZ LAW FIRM, P.S.C. 
ATTORNEYS A N D  COUNSELORS AT LAW 

54 1 BUTTERMILK PIKE * SUITE 305 * ADMITTED IN KENTUCKY AND OIi1O 

0 ADMITTED IN KENTUCKY 

ADMITTED I N 0 1 3 1 0  

LL.M. TAXATION 

CRESCENT SPRINGS, KENTUCKY 41017- 1689 

TEL: (859)578-1000 * FAX: (859)578-1001 

www.hlfla w m m  

August 26,2005 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 
1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 340 
Frankfort, Kentucky 4060 1 

Re: Agreement by and between Kentucky Infrastructure Authority and 
Grant County Sanitation District, (Grantee), dated as of August , 200.5 

Greetings: 

The undersigned is an attorney at law duly admitted to the practice of law in the 
Commonwealth of Kentucky and is legal counsel to the Grant County Sanitation District, 
hereinafter referred to as the “Grantee”. I am familiar with the organization and existence of the 
Grantee and the laws of the Commonwealth applicable thereto. Additionally, I alii familiar with 
the Project (the “Project”) with respect to which the Agreement by and between the Kentucky 
Infrastructure Authority (“Authority”) and the Grantee is being authorized, executed and 
delivered. 

I have reviewed the form of Agreement by arid between the Authority arid the Grantee 
and the resolution or ordinance of the governing authority authorizing the execution and delivery 
of said Grant Agreement. 

Rased upon my review, I am of the opinion that: 

1) The Grantee is a sanitary sewer district of the Commonwealth of Kentucky duly 
organized and validly existing under the Constitution arid statutes of the Commonwealth of 
Kentucky. 

2) The Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Grantee and is a 
valid and binding obligation in accordance with its terms, except to the extent that the 
enforceability thereof may be liniited by equitable principles and by bankruptcy, reorganization, 
moratorium, insolvency or similar laws heretofore or hereafter enacted relating to or affecting the 
enforcement of creditors’ rights or remedies generally. 



August 26,2005 
Page 2 

3) The Grantee has all necessary power and authority (i) to enter into, perform and 
consurnmate all transactions contemplated by the Agreement, and (ii) to execute and deliver the 
documents and instruments to be executed and delivered by it in connection with the construction 
of the Project. 

4) The execution and delivery of the Agreement and the perforinance by the Grantee 
of its obligations thereunder does not and will not conflict with, violate or constitute a default 
under any court or administrative order, decree or ruling, or any law, statute, ordinance or 
regulation, or any agreement, indenture, mortgage, lease, note or other obligation or instrument, 
binding upon the Grantee, or any of its properties or assets. 

5) To the best of my knowledge after due inquiry there is no action, suit, proceedings 
or investigation at law or in equity before any court, public board or body pending or threatened 
against, affecting or questioning (i) the valid existence of the Grantee, (ii) the right or title of the 
members and officers of the Grantee to their respective positions, (iii) the authorization, 
execution, delivery or enforceability of the Agreement or the application of any monies or 
security therefore, (iv) the construction of the Project, or (v) that would have a material adverse 
impact on the ability of the Grantee to perform its obligations under the Agreement. 

6) None of the proceedings or authority heretofore had or taken by the Grantee for 
the authorization, execution or delivery of the Agreement has or have been repealed, rescinded, 
or revoked. 

7 )  All proceedings and actions of the Grantee with respect to which the Agreement is 
to be delivered were had or taken at meetings properly convened and held in substantial 
compliance with the applicable provisions of Sections 61.805 to 61.850 of the Kentucky Revised 
Statutes. 

Very truly yours, 

TFW/csb 



EXHIBIT 4 

STATEMENT OF AGREEMENT 
TO UTILIZE 

KENTUCKY UNIFORM SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTING AND COST-BASED RATES 

SX21081303 

I hereby certify that the Grantee cited below agrees, as a condition of fund award, to adopt 

and use, within 12 months of the end of the Grantee’s current fiscal year, the Kentucky 

Uniform System of Accounting or an alternative process (to be approved by the Kentucky 

Infrastructure Authority) unless grantee has previously certified adoption by an earlier date, 

if that being the case I certify that grantee is in compliance with the previously executed 

agreement. I also certify that rates and charges for water service will be based upon the 

cost of providing such service. The Kentucky Uniform System of Accounting may be 

viewed at: http.//wris.state. ky.us/kia/KUSoA. htm. 

Signed: 

G RANT COU NTY S AN ITATION D I STRl CT 
Name of Grantee 

Bobby Burgess 
Name of Representative 

August 17,2005 - 
Date 
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EXHIBIT 11 

FUN DI NG C ERTl F IC AT10 N 

SX21081303 

GRANT COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 

I hereby certify that the Grantee cited below has identified and applied for all available 

sources of funding for the project cited above. 

Signed: 

GRANT COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
Name of Grantee 

Bobbv Burgess, Chairman 
Name of Representative 

August 17,2005 
Date 
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Steven L. Beshear 
Governor 

OFFICE OF THE GOVER 
DEPARTMENT FOR LOCAL GO 

1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 340ti Y Y  INFRASTRUCTURi  Tony Wilder 
Commissioner Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 t'~U1HOHITY 

Phone (502) 57.3-2382 
Fax (502) 573-2939 

Toll Free (800) 346-5606 
www dlg.ky gov 

December 1, 2008 

Mr Kerry Odle 
CMW, Inc 
138 North Keeneland 
Richmond, KY 40475 

RE: Grant County Sewer Extension, Phase I 
SX2108 1303 
SAI# KY2008 1020-0997 

1 a.5- I*-JaO ,3 -.' 

Dear Mr Odle: 

The Kentucky State Clearinghouse, which has been officially designated as the 
Commonwealth's Single Point of Contact (SPOC) pursuant to Presidential Executive 
Order 12372, has completed its evaluation of your proposal. The clearinghouse review 
of this proposal indicates there are no identifiable conflicts with any state or local plan, 
goal, or objective. Therefore, the State Clearinghouse recommends this project be 
approved for assistance by the cognizant federal agency 

Although the primary function of the State Single Point of Contact is to coordinate 
the state and local evaluation of your proposal, the Kentucky State Clearinghouse also 
utilizes this process to apprise the applicant of statutory and regulatory requirements or 
other types of information which could prove to be useful in the event the project is 
approved for assistance. Information of this nature, if any, concerning this particular 
proposal will be attached to this correspondence 

You should now continue with the application process prescribed by the 
appropriate funding agency This process may include a detailed review by state 
agencies that have authority over specific types of projects 

This letter signifies only that the project has been processed through the State 
Single Point of Contact It is neither a commitment of funds from this agency or any other 
state of federal agency 

KentuckyUn bridledSpirit.com An Equal Opportunity Employer MIFID 

http://bridledSpirit.com


The results o f  th is review are valid for one year f rom the date of th is letter 
Continuation or renewal applications must be submitted to the State Clearinghouse annually 
An application not submitted to the funding agency, or not approved within one year after 
completion of this review, must be re-submitted to receive a valid intergovernmental review 

If you have any questions regarding this letter, please feel free to contact my office at 
502-573-2382 

Since re I y , 

Kentucky State ClearChghouse 

Attachments 
Cc, Northern KY ADD 

KIA 



The Heritage Council has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application Identifier 
Number KY2008 10200997 

New sewer lines within the existing right-of-way do not require an archaeological survey, however, new 
sewer lines not with the existing right-of-way must be surveyed by a professional archaeologist t o  determine 
if sites eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places will be affected by the undertaking New 
pump stations and new grinder pump stations project areas must be surveyed by a professional 
archaeologist to determine if sites eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places wi l l  be 
affected by the undertaking. Where a given project area or portions thereof have been disturbed by prior 
construction, the applicant may file documentation of that disturbance with the State Historic Preservation 
Officer and may request an opinion concerning the need of an archaeological survey. The State Historic 
Preservation Officer must review and approve the survey report. 

The Northern Kentucky ADD has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application 
Identifier Number KY2008 10200997 
no comments 

The Office of  State Budget Director has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State 
Application Identifier Number KY2008 10200997 
no comments 

The Fish & Wildlife has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application Identifier 
Number KY200810200997 

To minimize impacts to the aquatic environment the Kentucky Dept. of Fish & Wildlife Resources 
recommends that erosion control measures be developed and implemented prior to construction to reduce 
siltation into waterways located within the project area. Such erosion control measures may include, but are 
not limited to silt fences, staked straw bales, brush barriers, sediment basins, and diversion ditches. 
Erosion control measures will need to be installed prior to construction and should be inspected and 
repaired regularly as needed 

Additionally, KDFWR recommends the following for the portions of the project that crosses intermittent or 
perennial streams: Development/excavation in streams should be done during low flow periods to  minimize 
disturbances. When crossing a stream, the pipe should be laid perpendicular to the stream bank to 
minimize the direct impacts to the streambed. We recommend that all instream disturbances be returned to 
a stable condition upon completion of stream pipeline crossing. 

The Transportation has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application Identifier 
Number KY200810200997 
Bezold (D6), Mike: No comments 

The Kentucky Housing Corporation has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State 
Application Identifier Number KY200810200997 
No Comments 

The Housing, Building, Construction has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State 
Application Identifier Number KY200810200997 
no comment 

The Labor Cabinet has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application Identifier 
Number KY200810200997 

Prevailing Wage Rates are applicable please contact the Kentucky Labor Cabinet at 502-564-1523 to obtain 
the proper rates 



The Natural Resources has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application Identifier 
Number KY2008 10200997 

The proposed project may require a facility plan update The applicant is encouraged to contact the Division 
of Water, Water Infrastructure Branch to discuss facility planning status Contact Corrine Mulberry of the 
Wastewater Planning Section at (502) 564-3410 x 4805 or at corrine mulberry@ky.gov 

This review was based upon the information that was provided by the applicant through the Clearinghouse 
for this project. An endorsement of this project does not satisfy, or imply, the acceptance or issuance of any 
permits, certifications or approvals that may be required from this agency under Kentucky Revised Statutes 
or Kentucky Administrative Regulations Such endorsement means this agency has found no major 
concerns from the review of the proposed project as presented other than those stated as conditions or 
comments 

The proposed project is subject to Division of Water (DOW) jurisdiction because the following are or appear 
to be involved: sewer lines and appurtenances. Prior approval must be obtained from the DOW before 
construction can begin The applicant must cite the State Application Identifier (SA1 #KY200810200997) 
when submitting plans and specifications. 

This project consists of the construction of 14,080 linear feet (LF) of gravity sewer main with manholes, 2 
sewer pump stations, 3 grinder pump stations, and 16,000 LF of force main to serve customers on Highway 
25 from City of Crittenden sewer system to Sherman including connection to public system and elimination 
of Grant (Mobile Home Park (MHP), Blackwell MHP and Kampgrounds of America (KOA) wastewater 
treatment plants serving a total of 190 new customers, 1 commercial entities, and 2 miscellaneous entities 
(schools, churches, etc.). According to recent Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) data, maximum flows 
continue to exceed the design capacity of the plant. Efforts to eliminate Inflow and Infiltration should be 
continued. Aside from this, the Water Infrastructure Branch is not opposed to this project. The receiving 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) is not under a sewer sanction. The applicant is a Regional Planning 
Agency under 401 KAR 5:006. Therefore the Water Infrastructure Branch of DOW endorses the proposed 
project. 

Best management practices should be used to minimize runoff from the site. 

From the application data, DOW ascertains that a ‘stream construction permit application’ needs to be 
submitted to the Division of Water for further review of this project. 

If the construction area disturbed is equal to or greater than 1 acre, the applicant will need to apply for a 
Kentucky Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (KPDES) storm water discharge permit. 

Utility line projects that cross a stream will require a Section 404 permit from the US Army Corps of  
Engineers and a 401 Water Quality Certification from DOW. 

The Kentucky Division of Water supports the goals of EPA’s Sustainable Infrastructure Initiative. This 
Initiative seeks to promote sustainable practices that will help to reduce the potential gap between funding 
needs and spending at the local and national level. The Sustainable Infrastructure Initiative will guide our 
efforts in changing how Kentucky views, values, manages, and invests in its water infrastructure. This 
webs i te, ww w .e pa. g ovlwaterinfras t ruct u re/, contains in f orma t ion that wil I he1 p you ensure your facility and 
operations are consistent with and can benefit from the aims of the Sustainable Infrastructure Initiative. 

The Health and Family Services has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application 
Identifier Number KY200810200997 

The Cabinet for Health and Family Services supports projects that improve the lives of Kentuckians, this 
project should be coordinated with the Department of Public Health, Division of Public Health Protection & 
Safety to  ensure that activities and funding are not duplicative. 

mailto:mulberry@ky.gov


ATTACHMENT A 

STAFF'S RECOMMENDED RATES 
STAFF REPORT CASE NO. 2005-00314 

Monthly Sewer Rates 

5/83(3/4" Water Meter 
First 2,OOOf aallons 
Next 3,000 
Next 5,000 
All Over 10,000 

I Water Meter 
First 5,000 
Next 1 5,000 
All Over 10,000 

I 1/2" Water Meter 
First 1 0,000 
All Over 10;000 

2" Water Meter 
First 20,000 
All Over 20,000 

. d f l  

gallons 
gallons 
gallons 

galions 
gallons 
gallons 

g a I Ion s 
gallons 

gallons 
gallons 

$21.06 Minimum bill 
8.25 per 1,000 gallons 
6.76 per 1,000 gallons 
5.31 per 1,000 gallons 

$45.81 Minimum bill 
6.76 per 1,000 gallons 
5.31 per 1,000 gallons 

$79.61 Minimum bill 
5.31 per 1,000 gallons 

$132.71 Minimum bill 
5.31 per 1,000 gallons 



FRCH : ELlUOCK PEN WQTER D I  ST FRY\ NO. : 

EXHlBlT q 
AUTNORI23TJON FOR ELECTRONIC DEPOSIT 

OF GRANTEE PAYMENT 
KENTUCKY INFRA6TRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

INFRASTRUCTURE FOR ECOffOMiC DEVELOPMENT FUND FOR TOBACCQICOAL 
PRQDUCiNG COUNTIES 

Dolect #: SX21081303 

Qra n tea! I,nfom~atl on: 

Water Utlllty: GRANT C O U N N  SANITATlClN DISTRICT 

Address: P 0 B n x  400 - 
City: ~ d w n  State: , K V  , ,Zip: AJ nyn _._ 
Telephone: 8 5 9  428, -4060 Contact; G a i l  B o w l i n r z  

E-mail address: ,b u 1 n. o c k T, en @ f u s e  t 
Federal I.D. #: 

c 

... 30 I 0 7  i.An.82 

Financial in8 tltutlon i nfcwmaw 

BankName: T n t P n m  Ran!< 

Branch: C r  i t: ter) d o n  Phone  NO:^ 9 4 2 8 -2500  ... 
City: Cr n d e n  State: K Y  Zip: 4 I 07 n c 

Transit / ABA No,: 08-25 -. 
Account Name:~,cssn PhP ea T -- 
Account Number: 7 R l . 0 2 n l 7 Q U  

I, the undersigned, authorize payments directly to the account Indicated abovtb and to 
carred any error5 which may occur from the transscflans, 1 also authorize thy Flnancial 
Inst9tutson ta pbst these transaction8 to that account. - 

Date: W Q 4 - . - - - - ~  - 
JobTitle: O f P i  ,-p M o n s ~ w -  , .. -. 

Pleasie return completed form to: Kentucky Infrastructure Authorlty 
1024 Capital Center Drlve, Sulte 840 
Frankfoort, KY 408011 
phone: 802-579-0260 
Pax: 602473431 87 
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WRlS NUMBER: 

PROJECT ID #: 

GRANT AMOUNT: 

GRANTEE: 

DATE OF AGREEMENT: 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

2008 GENERAL ASSEMBLY 
HOUSE BILL 608 

GRANT ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

SX21081303 

157N-2008 & 158N-2008 

$650,000 

GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 

1 



GRANT ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

This Grant Assistance Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this date, 
by and between the KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

and instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, and the ((Grant County Sanitary Sewer 
District )) (“G ra n t eel’). 

and politic, constituting a public corporation and governmental agency 

W I T N E S S  

WHEREAS, the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, at its 1988 Regular 
Session, amended Chapter 224A of the Kentucky Revised Statutes (the “Act”), creating the 
“Kentucky Infrastructure Authority” to serve the public purposes identified in the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority, an agency of the Commonwealth attached to the Governor’s Office, 
is charged pursuant to KRS 224A.300 with coordinating the implementation of infrastructure projects 
and to this end maintains within the Water Resource Information System, a comprehensive database 
of profiles of each community’s water and wastewater projects; and 

WHEREAS, the 2008-1 01 0 Budget enacted by the 2008 General Assembly included funding 
for the Infrastructure for Economic Revelopment Fund - Non-Coal Counties and the Infrastructure for 
Economic Development Fund - Coal Counties and charged the Authority with administrating the 
program; 

WHEREAS, THE 2008 General Assembly included in the Commonwealth’s 2008-2010 
biennial Budget funding for the Grantee’s Infrastructure project, the subject of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee now seeks to implement the Project as identified in the 2008-2010 
Budget of the Commonwealth and the Authority has determined that the Project is a Project within the 
meaning of the Act, and has been shown to be consistent with the Area Water Management Plan 
where applicable; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee and the Authority desire to enter into this Agreement which 
sets forth their respective duties, rights, covenants, and obligations with respect to the acquisition, 
construction and financing of the Project described in the Grantee’s Project Profile. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained herein and 
for the other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, mutuality and sufficiency of all of which is 
hereby acknowledged by the parties hereto, the Authority and the Grantee each agree as follows: 

2 



SECTION I - DEFINITIONS 

All terms utilized herein shall have the same definitions and meaning as ascribed to them in the 
Act, which are hereby incorporated in this Agreement by reference, the same as if set forth hereby 
verbatim; provided, however, that those definitions utilized in the Act having general application are 
hereby modified in certain instances to apply specifically to the Grantee and its Project. 

Act shall mean Chapter 224A of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, as amended. 

Agreement shall mean this Agreement made and entered into by and between the Grantee 
and the Authority, as authorized by the Act, providing for a Grant to the governmental agency, unit of 
government, or private, investor-owned water system by the Authority. 

Area Water Management Council shall mean the council designated as the planning body for 
the area, which shall prepare the Area Water Management Plan and approve all Project Profiles for 
water and wastewater projects 

Area Water Management Pian shall mean the plan that identifies current and future water 
supply, drinking water, and wastewater service needs of the area. 

Authority shall mean the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority created by the Act as amended, a 
body corporate and politic, constituting a public corporation and a governmental agency and 
instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, or such other designation as may be effected by 
future amendments to the Act. 

Engineer(s) shall mean the professional engineer or firm of professional engineers properly 
procured by the Grantee in connection with the Project identified in the Project Profile Database, 

Grantee shall mean the Grant County Sanitary Sewer District or the Grant County Sanitary 
Sewer District’s designee that is a governmental agency or unit of government or any private, investor 
owned utility within the Commonwealth eligible for funding under the Program in accordance with the 
Act, now having been or hereaAer being granted the authority and power to finance, acquire, construct, 
or operate a Project, and for the purpases of this Agreement shall mean that Grant County Sanitary 
Sewer District identified in the Project Profile or the 2008 Budget of the Commonwealth. 

Grant shall mean the funds effected under this Agreement from the Authority to the Grantee in 
the principal amount set forth in the 2008-20010 Budget of the Commonwealth, for the purpose of 
defraying the costs incidental to the Project. 

Kentucky Water Management Plan shall mean the guide and strategy that incorporates and 
analyzes each Area Water Management Plan and provides an assessment of future needs and 
allocation of funding for water and wastewater services throughout the Commonwealth. 

3 



Program shall mean the program authorized by KRS 224A.035 for the Authority to engage in a 
program of assistance to designated entities with respect to the construction and acquisition of water 
and wastewater infrastructure projects. 

Project shall mean, when used generally, water, wastewater or other infrastructure project 
authorized pursuant to the Act, and when used in specific reference to the Grantee, the Project 
described in the Project Profile. 

Project Administrator shall mean that individual designated in writing to the Authority by the 
Grantee, who has the responsibility of supervising the Project and coordinating the preparation of all 
documentation with respect to the Project. 

Project Budget shall mean a list of Project expenses and funding sources, in the form set forth 
in Exhibit 1" 

Project Profile shall mean those specific details of the Project, approved by the Area Water 
Management Council as being consistent with the Area Water Management Plan, as applicable. 

Rates and Charges shall mean an approved schedule of charges, based on actual cost of 
service, to adequately provide for retirement of any related debt obligation and to provide for proper 
operation of the Project. 

System shall mean the utility system owned and operated by the Grantee of which the Project 
shall become a part and from the earnings of which System shall be operated, maintained and 
insured. 

SECTION 2 - OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY 

The Authority covenants and agrees, conditioned upon the timely performance by the other party of 
its respective obligations, to undertake the following obligations: 

A. The Authority shall pay to the Grantee the grant sum in an amount not to exceed $650,000 
subject to the availability of appropriate funding, to complete the Project in accordance with the 
Project Prifile attached hereto as Exhibit 1, which is hereby incorporated herein and made a 
part of this Agreement. No payments shall be made until after the Project has received 
Clearinghouse endorsement. 

B. The Authority may make periodic reviews of the Project progress and may make inspections of 
the Project and send inspection reports to the Grantee. Deficiencies identified in the 
inspection report shall be corrected by the Grantee and the correction reported in writing to the 
Authority within two weeks of receipt of the Authority's inspection report. 

C. The Authority shall cooperate with the Grantee in order to facilitate the obligations set out in 
this Agreement. 

4 



SECTION 3 - OBLIGATIONS OF THE GRANTEE 

The Grantee covenants and agrees to undertake the following obligations: 

A. The Grantee shall, before any funds are released, sign and submit the Agreement, and 
complete and include the following Exhibits which are incorporated herein and made a part 
he reof: 

1. Before the Project is bid, the Grantee shall complete and submit to the Authority the 
following: 

a) A Project description in the form of a Project Profile together with the estimated Project 
Budget, as Exhibit I. 

b) Original copy of the Grantee’s resolution, as Exhibit 2, accepting the grant award, 
amending its budget to allow for receipt and expenditures of these funds, and 
authorizing a designated individual to execute the Agreement and all other 
documentation related to the Project. 

c) A schedule of current rates and charges, as Exhibit 3. If there will be a change in the 
current rate structure as a result of this project, provide the proposed schedule of rates 
and charges. 

d) Documentation of Clearinghouse Endorsement. 

e) An Application for Electronic Transfer of Funds, as Attachment B. 

f) Any additional covenants or agreements that may be required. 

2. After Project is bid, the Grantee shall complete and submit to the Authority the following: 

a) A revised Project Budget based on Project bids, as Exhibit 4. 

b) Documentation of Clearinghouse Comments. 

The Grantee may request receipt of Grant funds after completion of items of Exhibits 1-4 by executing 
a Request for Payment and Project Status Report, as provided by the Authority, and attaching 
appropriate documentation, concluding, but not limited to , invoices and receipts. The Authority may 
withhold release of funds until receipt of Administrative Fee pursuant to Section 7. 

B. The Grantee agrees to adopt and use the Kentucky Uniform System of Accounting and Cost- 
Based Rates (KUSoA) and assure that rates and charges for service are based iipon the cost 
of providing such service. If applicable to the Project. These rates and charges shall be in 
place no later than within 12 months of the end of the Grantee’s current fiscal year. 

C. The Grantee shall receive Project funds via €lectronic Fund Transfer (EFT) with the EFt to be 
implemented by use of the form provided by the Authority. 



D. 

E. 

F. 

G. 

H. 

I .  

J. 

K. 

L. 

M. 

N. 

The Grantee shall perform andlor cause to be performed all necessary acts (consistent with 
KRS 45A and in accordance with applicable laws) to plan, design and construct the Project 
including: the procurement of land, easements and rights of way; professional services, 
including but not limited to architectural and engineering services; construction contractor(s); 
and equipment and/or materials. 

The Grantee shall obtain all necessary permits, licenses and approvals from the appropriate 
federal, state, and/or local governmental entities prior to construction of the Project. Further, 
the Grantee shall require all construction contractors to pay wages pursuant to applicable 
prevailing wage rates (federal or state) for all work relating to the subject Project. 

The Grantee shall utlize the “Fees for Porfessional Engineering Services - Percentage of 
Construction Cost”, in the engineers’s contract for this project, as provided by the Authority. 

The Grantee shall comply with all applicable federal and state statutes, executive orders, 
regulatory requirements, and policies relating to the planning and construction of the Project. 

The Grantee shall provide to the Autharity access to all records related to the Project for 
review in determining compliance with the Grant Agreement and all applicable laws and 
regulations. The Grantee shall retain all records, including all invoices, relating to the Project 
for three years after full execution of Exhibit 5 - Certificate of Completion. 

The Grantee shall cooperate fully with the Authority and provide any documentation requested 
by the Authority in order to facilitate the obligations set out in this Agreement. 

Any unauthorized or improper expenditure of funds, or expenditure of funds other than in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement, shall be deemed a default of this Agreement by 
the Grantee. 

The Grantee will proceed expeditiously with and complete the Project in accordance with the 
approved final design, plans and specifications or amendments thereto, prepared by the 
Project Engineer for the Grantee and as approved by the appropriate state and federal 
agencies. 

The Grantee agrees that throughout the reasonable life of the infrastructure facilities 
developed under this Project it will retain ownership of, operate, and maintain these facilities, 
and all appurtenances thereto, keeping them in good and sound repair and goad operating 
condition at its own expense so that the completed Project will continue to provide the services 
for which it was designed. Change of ownership or disposal of the Project facilities may occur 
only with written approval of the Authority. 

The Grantee agrees that it will at all times impose, charge and collect sufficient customer 
Rates and Charges. 

The Grantee shall, within 3 months of initiation of construction of the Project, submit to the 
Authority, Final Design Plans in an AutoCAD Drawing File Format (DWG), referenced to the 
appropriate (North or South) Kentucky State Plane Coordinate System (NAD83-Survey Feet) 
on a Compact Disc (CD). I f  there is a significant deviation from the Final Design Plan during 
construction, As-built plans shall also be provided to the Authority, within three months of 
construction completion, in the same format. 
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0. The Grantee shall submit the fully executed Certificate of Completion once all Project 
construction related activities are complete. Exhibit 5. 

SECTION 4 - MUTUALITY OF OBLIGATIONS 

A. The parties agree that the funds granted by the Commonwealth to the Grantee are to be used 
solely for the purposes of implementing the Project. Further the parties agree that the 
obligations imposed upon them are for their respective benefit and the timely fulfillment of each 
and every obligation in accordance with this Agreement is necessary. The failure of either 
party to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement shall constitute a breach of same. 

B. In the event of default by the Grantee, including the failure to take actions directed herein 
andlor to comply with time deadlines set out in this Agreement, the Authority rnay declare this 
Agreement void from the beginning without further obligation to the Grantee and may 
commence appropriate legal action to enforce its rights under this Agreement including action 
for recovery of funds expended hereunder. 

C .  Except as may otherwise be provided herein, the parties to this Agreement shall be solely 
responsible for any costs incurred in fulfilling their respective obligations under this Agreement 
and neither party shall have any claim against the other party for reimbursement of costs 
whether or not a party is in default. 

SECTION 5 - TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

A" 

B. 

C .  

D. 

All funds made available under this Agreement are subject to reauthorization by subsequent 
General Assemblies of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. Should funding for the Project not be 
reauthorized this agreement shall terminate. 

This Agreement shall be valid only after all signatories have signed. 

This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time for cause and may be 
terminated by either party without cause upon 30 days written notice to the other party. 
Termination of this Agreement shall not diminish or in any other manner affect any other 
remedy that may be available to the parties for any breach of the Agreement that occurs prior 
to the termination. 

If additional financial assistance for this project becomes available to the Grantee after 
execution of this agreement, the amount of the assistance from the Authority shall be 
recalculated with the inclusion of the additional assistance, and the Grantee shall pay to the 
Authority the amount, if any, by which the grant actually made, exceeds the grant as 
determined by the recalculation. 

SECTION 6 - ADVANCE FUNDING FOR PROJECT PLANNING AND DESIGN 

A. The Grantee may request, in writing, that a portion of the grant funds be disbursed prior to 
Project bidding to pay a portion of the cost of Project planning and design directly related to 
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submission of the Project plans and specifications for review by the Division of Water and the 
Public Service Commission, as may be required. 

B. It is specifically understood and agreed by the Grantee, in the event that the Project has not 
commenced construction by June 30, 2010, for whatever reason, all grant funds disbursed for 
Project planning and design are subject to full and immediate repayment to the Authority. 

C. Funds disbursed under this Section of the Agreement shall not exceed 50% of the Project 
planning and design arnount. 

D. Funds received under provisions of this Section shall be used solely for planning and design 
costs of the Project. 

E. No funds shall be released under this Section until the requirements of Section 3. A. 1 I of this 
Agreernent have been met. 

SECTION 7 - ADMINISTRATIVE FEE 

The Grantee agrees to pay to the Authority an administrative fee (the “Administrative Fee”) 
equal to % of Ioh of the principal amount of the Grant. The Administrative Fee shall be due 
and payable on the date the Grantee’s initial Request for Payment and Project Status Report is 
submitted to the Authority. Administrative fees are applicable for Grantees identified under 
the Sections of the 2008-20010 Budget of the Commonwealth as Coal Producing Counties and 
Non-Coal Producing Counties only. 

SECTION 8 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

A” 

6. 

C. 

D. 

This Agreement may be signed by each party on a separate copy, and in such case one 
counterpart of this Agreement shall consist of a sufficient number of such copies to reflect the 
signature of each party hereto. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts 
each of that shall be deemed an original, and it shall not be necessary in making proof of this 
Agreement or the terms and conditions hereof to produce or account for more than one of such 
counterparts. 

The headings set forth in this Agreement are only for convenience or reference and the words 
contained therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the interpretation, 
construction or meaning of the provisions of this Agreement. 

The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit 
of the successor and assigns, respectively, of the parties. This provision shall not be 
construed to permit an assignment by any party of any of its rights and duties under this 
Agreement which assignment shall be prohibited except with the prior written consent of the 
parties hereto. 

This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the subject 
matter hereof, and may be modified only by a written instrument duly executed by each of the 
parties hereto. 
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E. The parties agree that any suit, action or proceeding with respect to this Agreement may only 
be brought into or entered by, as the case may be, the courts of the Commonwealth of 
Kentucky situated in Frankfort, Franklin County, Kentucky or the United States District Court 
for the Eastern District of Kentucky, Frankfort Division. 

F. The Authority may audit or review all documentation and records of the Grantee relating to this 
Project pursuant to the provisions of KRS 45A.150. 

G. The Grantee agrees that the Authority, the Finance and Administration Cabinet, the Auditor of 
Public Accounts, and the Legislative Research Commission, or their duly authorized 
representatives, shall have access to any books, documents, papers, records, or other 
evidence, which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purpose of financial audit or 
program review. Furthermore, any books, documents, papers records, or other evidence 
provided to the Commonwealth, the Finance and Administration Cabinet, the Auditor of Public 
Accounts, or the Legislative Research Commission which are directly pertinent to the contract 
shall be subject to public disclosure regardless of the proprietary nature of the information, 
unless specific information is identified and exempted and agreed to by the Secretary of the 
Finance and Administration Cabinet as meeting the provisions of KRS 61.878(1)(c) prior to the 
execution of the contract. The Secretary of the Finance and Administration Cabinet shall not 
restrict the public release of any information which would otherwise be subject to public 
release if a state government agency was providing the services. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by 
their respective duly authorized officers as of the day and year above written. 

TitleTExecutive Director _- Title: Sehretaw 

Grant County Sanitary Sewer District ATTEST 

By: 

LJ Title: Ch6irman - 

/?A 
EXAM IN ED 

p 

Title: Secretary 
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REQUIRED EX HI BITS 

Exhibit I - Project Profile and Estimated Project Budget 

Exhibit 2 - Resolution/Certificate 

Exhibit 3 - Schedule of Current (and Proposed if applicable) Rates & Charges 

Exhibit 4 - Revised Project Profile (if applicable) and As-bid Budget 

Exhibit 5 - Certificate of Completion 

ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A - Checklist 

Attachment B - Application for Electronic Transfer of Funds 

Attachment C - Fees for Professional Services 

Attachment D - Request for Payment Forma and Project Status Report 

10 



712012009 

Grantee: Grant County Sanitation District 
WRIS: SX21081303 

Project Admin: Kerry Odle 
Email: kodIe@cmwaec.com 

Project ID#: 157N-2008 

Project Amount: 250,000 of 250,000 

CHECKLIST 

Step I, Before Project is Bid: 

1- Executed Grant Assistance Agreement 

2- Exhibit 1 - Project Profile and Estimated Project Budget 

3- Exhibit 2 - Resolution 

4- Exhibit 3 - Schedule for Current (and proposed if applicable) Rates and Charges 

5- Clearinghouse State Applicator Identifier # (SAI) 

6- Application for Electronic Transfer of Funds Form 

7- Capital Projects and Bond Oversight Committee Review 

Step 2, After Project is Bid: 

1- Exhibit 4 - Revised Project Profile (if applicable) and Project Budget based on 
Project Bids 

2- Additional Covenants and Agreements (if applicable) 

3- Other Funding Commitment (if applicable) 

4- Documentation of Clearinghouse Endorsement and Comments 

Step 3, Project Closeout: 

1- Final Design Plan is an AutoCAD Drawing File Format (DWG), 
referenced to the appropriate (North and South) Kentucky State 
Plane Coordinate System (NAD83-Survey Feet) 
on a Compact Disc (CD) to be submitted within 3 months of 
initiation of construction 

2- If there is a significant deviation from the Final Design Plan 
during construction, As-built Plans shall also be provided to the 
Authority, within three months of Construction completion 

3- Exhibit 5 .. Fully executed Certificate of Completion 

031 1612009 

031 1612009 

031 1612009 

031 1612009 

031 1612009 

031 1612009 

0 112012009 

031 1612009 

0311 612009 

Note: Administrative Fee 
Per Section 7 of the Grant Agreement, the Grantee agrees to pay to the Authority a 
fee equal to 1/2 of 1% of the principal amount of the Grant The Administrative Fee shall be 
and payable on the date the Grantee's initial Request for Payment and Project Status Report 
submitted to the Authority 

mailto:kodIe@cmwaec.com


7/2012009 

Grantee: Grant County Sanitation District 
WRIS: SX21081303 

Project Adrnin: Kerry Odle 
Ernail: kodIe@crnwaec.com 

Project ID#: 158N-2008 

Project Amount: 400,000 of 400,000 

CHECKLIST 

Step 1, Before Project is Bid: 

1- Executed Grant Assistance Agreement 

2- Exhibit 1 - Project Profile and Estimated Project Budget 

3- Exhibit 2 - Resolution 

4- Exhibit 3 - Schedule for Current (and proposed if applicable) Rates and Charges 

5- Clearinghouse State Applicator identifier # (SAI) 

6- Application for Electronic Transfer of Funds Form 

7- Capital Projects and Bond Oversight Committee Review 

Step 2, After Project is Bid: 

1-  Exhibit 4 - Revised Project Profile (if applicable) and Project Budget based on 
Project Bids 

2- Additional Covenants and Agreements (if applicable) 

3- Other Funding Commitment (i f  applicable) 

4- Documentation of Clearinghouse Endorsement and Comments 

Step 3, Project Closeout: 

1- Final Design Plan is an AutoCAD Drawing File Format (DWG), 
referenced to the appropriate (North and South) Kentucky State 
Plane Coordinate System (NAD83-Survey Feet) 
on a Compact Disc (CD) to be submitted within 3 months of 
initiation of construction 

2- If there is a significant deviation from the Final Design Plan 
during construction, As-built Plans shall also be provided to the 
Authority, within three months of construction completion 

3- Exhibit 5 - Fully executed Certificate of Completion 

0311 612009 

031 1612009 

0311 612009 

031 1612009 

031 1612009 

031 1612009 

0112012009 

031 1612009 

0311 612009 

Note: Administrative Fee 
Per Section 7 of the Grant Agreement. the Grantee agrees to pay to the Authority a 
fee equal to 112 of 1% of the principal amount of the Grant The Administrative Fee shall be 
and payable on the date the Grantee's initial Request for Payment and Project Status Reporl 
submitted to the Authority 

mailto:kodIe@crnwaec.com


EXHIBIT 1 

PROJECT PROFILE & PROJECT BUDGET 

Please attach the SWWX Project Profile and Project Budget 

SX21081303 

PROJECT ID # 157N-2008 & 158N-2008 

GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 
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KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

Cost Classification 
1 Administrative Expenses (1) 

3 Land, Appraisals, Easements 
4 Relocation Expense & Pavments 

2 Legal Expenses 

Project Budget: HB 608 
GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 
SX21081303 
Project ID# 157N-2008 & 158N-2008 

Amount 

$20,000 
$50,000 

Estimated r' As Bid 

5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 

Planning (2) $30,000 
Engineering Fees - Design $1 10,547 
Engineering Fees - Construction 
Engineering Fees - Inspection $68,929 
Construction $1,300,548 
Equipment 
Contingency $129,976 
Other $30,000 
Total $1,740,000 

Funding Sources 
1 2008HB608 
2 Economic Dev Fund for Tobacco Produci Counties 
3 
4 Tap-on fees 
5 Gcssd Contribution 
6 

Grant MHP (Cost of Pump Station) 

Total 

Amount Date Committed 
$650,000 2-5-09 
$900,000 12-1 8-08 ~ / ~ z P & J ~  
$70,000 
$76,000 
$44,000 

$1,740,000 

f Revised 

Chairman 
Title 

2-1 7-09 
Date 

Form revised 7/06 
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EXHIBIT 2 

RESOLUTION 
SX21081303 

RESOLUTION OF THE GRANT C O U N N  SANITARY SEWER 
DISTRICT (GRANTEE) ACCEPTING THE GRANT, APPROVING THE 
GRANT AGREEMENT, AUTHORIZING THE AMENDMENT OF LOCAL 
BUDGET, AND AUTHORIZING A RESPRESENTATIVE TO SIGN ALL 
RELATED DOCUMENTS 

PROJECT ID # 157N-2008 & 158N-0008 

WHEREAS, the General Assembly has appropriated funds for 
infrastructure projects in the 2008-201 0 Budget of the Commonwealth; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee has previously determined that it is in the public 
interest to acquire and construct certain facilities and improvements to the Grantee's 
utility system (the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee desires funding from the Kentucky Infrastructure 
Authority (the "Authority") for the purpose of acquisition and construction of the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Grantee 
as follows: 

SECTION 1. That the Grantee hereby accepts the grant award and approves the 
Agreement between the Grantee and the Authority substantially in the form on file with 
the Grantee for the purpose of providing a portion of the necessary financing to the 
Grantee for the acquisition and construction of the Project. 

SECTION 2. That Bobby Burgess, Chairman, is hereby authorized, directed and 
empowered by the Grantee to execute the Agreement and all other necessary 
documents or agreements, and to otherwise act on behalf of the Grantee to implement 
the Project. 

SECTION 3. That the Grantee hereby includes in its annual budget the receipt 
and expenditures of funds subject to the Agreement with the Authority. 

SECTION 4. This Agreement shall take effect immediately upon passage. 

ADOPTED on February 17,2009. 

GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 

BY: 
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CERTIFICATE 

SX21081303 
GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 

I ,  the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting 

Chairman of the Grant County Sanitary Sewer District; that the foregoing is a full, true 

and correct copy of a Resolution adopted by the governing authority of said Grantee at 

a meeting duly held on February 17, 2009; that said official action appears as a matter 

of public record in the official records or journal of the governing authority; that said 

meeting was held in accordance with all applicable requirements of Kentucky law, 

including KRS 61.810, 61.81 5, 61.820 and 61.825; that a quorum was present at said 

meeting; that said official action has not been modified, amended, revoked or repealed 

and is now in full force and effect. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness by me this I 7'h day of February, 2009. 

GRANT COUTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 

BY: 13 & 7-27; +2.&44%- 

gILLYfRANK SIMPSOfl, Secretary 
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AlTACHMENT A 

STAFF'S RECOMMENDED RATES 
STAFF REPORT CASE NO. 2005-00314 

Monthly Sewer Rates 

! 

5/83(3/4" Water Meter 
First 2,OOOf gallons 
Next 3,000 gallons 
Next 5,000 gallons 
All Over 10,000 gallons 

I I' Water Meter 
First 5,000 gallons 
Next 5,000 gallons 
All Over 10,000 gallons 

1 1/2" Water Meter 
First 10,000 gallons 
All Over 10,000 gallons 

2" Water Meter 
First 20,000 gallons 
All Over 20,000 gallons 

I 

$24.06 Minimum bill 
8.25 per 1,000 gallons 
6.76 per 1,000 gallons 
5.31 per 1,000 gallons 

$45.81 Minimum bill 
6.76 per 1,000 gallons 
5.31 per 1,000 gallons 

$79.61 Minimum bill 
5.31 per 1,000 gallons 

$132.71 Minimum bill 
5.31 per I .UOO gallons 

! 



Steven 1. Beshear 
Governor 

OFFICE OF THE GOVER 
DEPARTMENT FOR LOCAL GO 

1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 3405; L 5 .  If iFRASTRUCTWRi 
,‘+ U THO HI T Y 

Tony Wilder 
Co m m iss I on er Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 

Phone (502) 57.3-2382 
Fax (502) 573-2939 

Toll Free (800) 346-5606 
www.dlg ky.gov 

December 1 ,  2008 

Mr Kerry Odle 
CMW, Inc 
138 North Keeneland 
Richmond, KY 40475 

RE Grant County Sewer Extension, Phase I 
SX2 108 1303 
SAI# KY2008 1020-0997 

) LIS-  7-JOt)5 - 
Dear Mr Odle 

The Kentucky State Clearinghouse, which has been officially designated as the 
Commonwealth’s Single Point of Contact (SPOC) pursuant to Presidential Executive 
Order 12372, has completed its evaluation of your proposal The clearinghouse review 
of this proposal indicates there are no identifiable conflicts with any state or local plan, 
goal, or objective Therefore, the State Clearinghouse recommends this project be 
approved for assistance by the cognizant federal agency 

Although the primary function of the State Single Point of Contact is to coordinate 
the state and local evaluation of your proposal, the Kentucky State Clearinghouse also 
utilizes this process to apprise the applicant of statutory and regulatory requirements or 
other types of information which could prove to be useful in the event the project is 
approved for assistance Information of this nature; if any, concerning this particular 
proposal will be attached to this correspondence 

You should now continue with the application process prescribed by the 
appropriate funding agency This process may include a detailed review by state 
agencies that have authority over specific types of projects 

This letter signifies only that the project has been processed through the State 
Single Point of Contact It IS neither a commitment of funds from this agency or any other 
state of federal agency 

K 7tuckyUnbridledSpirit com An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D 



The  resu l t s  of t h i s  review a r e  valid for o n e  year f rom t he  d a t e  of t h i s  letter 
Continuation or renewal applications must be submitted to the State Clearinghouse annually 
An application not submitted to the funding agency, or not approved within one year after 
c,ornpletion of this review, must be re-submitted to receive a valid intergovernmental review 

I f  you have any questions regarding this letter, please feel free to contact my office at 
502-573-2382 

Sincerely, 

Kentucky 'Stat e CI ea r/g house 

Attachments 
Cc Northern KY ADD 

KIA 



The Hkritage Counci l  has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application Identifier 
Number KY200810200997 

New sewer lines within the existing right-of-way do  not require an archaeological survey, however, new 
sewer lines not wi th the existing right-of-way must  be surveyed by a professional archaeologist to determine 
i f  si tes eligible for l ist ing in the National Register of Historic Places wil l  be affected by  the undertaking New 
p u m p  stat ions and new grinder pump stations project areas must be surveyed b y  a professional 
archaeologist to determine i f  sites eligible for l ist ing in  the National Register o f  Historic Places wil l  be 
affected by  the undertaking Where a given project area or portions thereof have been disturbed by  prior 
construct ion,  the applicant may f i le documentation of that disturbance with the State Historic Preservation 
Off icer and may request an opinion concerning the need of an archaeological survey The State Historic 
Preservation Officer must review and approve the survey report 

The Northern Kentucky ADD has made the fol lowing advisory comment pertaining to State Application 
Identifier Number KY2008 10200997 
n o  comments 

The Office o f  State Budget Director has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State 
Application Identifier Number KY2008 10200997 
n o  comments 

The Fish & Wildlife has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application Identifier 
Number KY200810200997 

To minimize impacts to the aquatic environment the Kentucky Dept of Fish & Wildlife Resources 
recommends that erosion control measures be developed and implemented prior to construct ion to reduce 
si l tat ion in to  waterways located within the project area Such erosion control measures may include, but are 
not l imited to silt fences, staked straw bales, b rush  barriers, sediment basins, and diversion ditches 
Erosion control measures wil l  need to be installed prior to construction and should be inspected and 
repaired regularly as needed 

Additionally, KDFWR recommends the fol lowing for the portions of the project that crosses intermittent or 
perennial streams Development/excavation in  streams should be done during low flow periods to minimize 
disturbances When crossing a stream, the pipe should be laid perpendicular to the stream bank to 
minimize the direct impacts to the streambed We recommend that all instream disturbances be returned to 
a stable condi t ion upon completion of stream pipel ine crossing 

The Transportat ion has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application Identifier 
Number KY200810200997 
Bezold (D6), Mike. No  comments 

The Kentucky Housing Corporation has made the fol lowing advisory comment pertaining to State 
Application Identifier Number KY2008 10200997 
No Comments 

The Housing, Bui lding, Construction has made the fol lowing advisory comment pertaining to State 
Application Identifier Number KY2008 10200997 
n o  comment  

The Labor Cabinet has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application Identifier 
Number KY2008 10200997 

Prevailing Wage Rates are applicable please contact the Kentucky Labor Cabinet at 502-564-1 523 to obtain 
the proper rates 



The Natural Resources has made the fol lowing advisory comment pertaining to State Application Identifier 
Number  KY200810200997 

The proposed project may require a faci l i ty plan update The applicant i s  encouraged to contact the Division 
o f  Water, Water Infrastructure Branch to discuss facility planning status Contact Corrine Mulberry o f  the 
Wastewater Planning Section at (502) 564-3410 x 4805 or at corrine mulberry@ky gov 

This review was based upon the information that was provided by the applicant through the Clearinghouse 
for th is project An endorsement of this project does not satisfy, or imply, the acceptance or issuance of any 
permits,  certifications or approvals that may be required from this agency under Kentucky Revised Statutes 
o r  Kentucky  Administrative Regulations Such endorsement means this agency has found no  major 
concerns  f rom the review o f  the proposed project as presented other than those stated as condit ions or 
comments  

The proposed project is subject to  Division of Water (DOW) jurisdiction because the fol lowing are or  appear 
to be involved. sewer lines and appurtenances Prior approval must be obtained from the DOW before 
cons t ruc t ion  can begin The applicant must  cite the State Application Identifier (SA1 #KY200810200997) 
when  submit t ing plans and specif icat ions 

This p ro jec t  consists of the construction o f  14,080 linear feet (LF) of gravity sewer main wi th manholes, 2 
sewer  pump stations, 3 grinder pump stations, and 16,000 LF of force main to serve customers on  Highway 
25 f rom City of Crittenden sewer system ta  Sherman including connection to publ ic system and elimination 
o f  Grant (Mobile Home Park (MHP), Blackwell  MHP and Kampgrounds o f  America (KOA) wastewater 
t reatment plants serving a total o f  190 new customers, 1 commercial entities, and 2 miscellaneous entities 
(schools,  churches, etc ) According to recent Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) data, maximum flows 
cont inue to exceed the design capacity o f  the plant Efforts to eliminate Inf low and Infiltration should be 
cont inued Aside from this, the Water Infrastructure Branch is not opposed to this project The receiving 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) is no t  under a sewer sanction The applicant is a Regional Planning 
Agency under 401 KAR 5.006 Therefore the Water Infrastructure Branch of DOW endorses the proposed 
project  

Best management practices should be used to minimize runoff from the site 

F rom the  application data, DOW ascertains that a 'stream construction permit application' needs to be 
submi t ted  to the Division of Water for further review of this project 

If the construct ion area disturbed is  equal to or greater than 1 acre, the applicant wi l l  need to apply for a 
Kentucky  Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (KPDES) storm water discharge permit 

Uti l i ty l ine projects that cross a stream wi l l  require a Section 404 permit f rom the US Army Corps of 
Engineers and a 401 Water Quality Certification from DOW 

The Kentucky  Division o f  Water supports the goals of EPA's Sustainable Infrastructure Initiative This 
Init iat ive seeks to promote sustainable practices that wi l l  help to reduce the potential gap between funding 
needs and spending at the local and national level The Sustainable Infrastructure Initiative will guide our 
ef for ts in changing how Kentucky views, values, manages, and invests in  its water infrastructure. This 
website, w w w  epa.gov/waterinfrastructure/, contains information that wi l l  help you ensure your facility and 
operat ions are consistent wi th and can benefit f rom the aims of the Sustainable Infrastructure Initiative 

The Health and Family Services has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application 
Identi f ier Number KY200810200997 

The Cabinet for Health and Family Services supports projects that improve the lives of Kentuckians, this 
project  shou ld  be coordinated with the Department of Public Health, Division o f  Public Health Protection & 
Safety to ensure that activities and funding are not duplicative 



EXHIBIT 6 

AUTHORIZATION FOR ELECTRONIC DEPOSIT 
OF GRANTEE PAYMENT 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

HB608 

WRlS #: SX2 IO81 303 

Project ID#: 157N-2008 & 158N-2008 

GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DlSTRtCT 

Address:g 0 B ~ X  h h n  ___-.---_I 

Telephone: 859  4 2 8 - 3 0 6 0  Contact: c2 i L_-~~ _I.”-- 

Federal I.D.#: -30-0216.082 ___--.- _-__l_----..__l_ 

City: C , r i + - t p n d P n  State: K~ _. Zip: 4 1 0 3 0  

E-mail address: bullockaen@fllsP.n P t 

Financial Institution Information: 

BankNarne: I n t e p r a  B a n k  --- 
Branch: C r  i t  t e n d e n  PhoneNo: 8 5 9  ~ 7 8  - 7 ” ; ~  

State: K Y Zip: 1 I! 3 ‘3 City: ...-.- 

Transit/ABA No.: 0 8 6 3 0 0 0 2 5  .I_ 

AccountName: p~ ~ - ~ m T I c ~ ~  ;y T 4 P  ON p a ? ~  ..- 

___ -̂- 

Account Number: -7 8 1 n 3 n 1 2 a 

I, the undersigned, authorize payments directly to the account indicated above and to 
correct any errors which may occur from the transactions. I also authorize the Financial 
Institution to post these transactions to  that account. 

Signature: Date: ? / I  7 / n ~  .. --.- 

Name Printed: A/&MBfl/ .- 

Please return completed fonn to: Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 
1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 340 
Frankfort, KY 40601 
phone: 502-573-0260 
fax: 502-573-01 57 
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EXHIBIT ‘“7’’ 
(Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 

American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act Revolving Lo an 

Fund Commitment Letter for 
$3 00,O 0 0 .OO) 



KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
REPAYMENT SCHEDULE 
GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 
AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT OF 2009 - FUND A LOAN 
INTEREST RATE - 
P & I CALCULATION- 

Payment 
Date 

611 1201 1 
1211/2011 
6/1/2012 

12/1/2012 
611 I201 3 

12/1 /2013 
611 1201 4 

1211 1201 4 
61112015 

1211 1201 5 
611 I201 6 

12/1 1201 6 
61 1 I201 7 

121112017 
6/1/2018 

1 211 /2018 
611 I20 1 9 

12/1 1201 9 
611 /2020 

12/1 12020 
611 12021 

1211 12021 
611 12022 

1211 /2022 
611 12023 

1 2/1/2023 
611 12024 

12/1 12024 
611 12025 

12/1/2025 
611 /2026 

1 2/1/2026 
6/1 12027 

1 211 12027 
611 12028 

1211 I2028 
611 I2029 

1 2/1/2029 
611 12030 

1 2/1 I2030 

Principal 
Due 

2,647.97 
2,687.69 
2,728.00 
2,768.92 
2,810.46 
2,852.62 
2,895.40 
2,938.84 
2,982.92 
3,027.66 
3,073.08 
3,119.17 
3,165.96 
3,213.45 
3,261.65 
3,310.58 
3,360.24 
3,410.64 
3,461.80 
3,513.73 
3,566.43 
3,619.93 
3,674.23 
3,729.34 
3,785.28 
3,842.06 
3,899.69 
3,958.19 
4,017.56 
4,077.82 
4,138.99 
4,201.07 
4,264.09 
4,328.05 
4,392.97 
4,458.87 
4,525.75 
4,593.64 
4,662.54 
4.732.72 

3.00% 
$4,803.47 Semiannually 

Interest 
Due 

2,155.50 
2,115.78 
2,075.47 
2,034.55 
1,993.01 
1,950.85 
1,908.07 
1,864.63 
1,820.55 
1,775.81 
1,730.39 
1,684.30 
1,637.51 
1,590.02 
1,541.82 
1,492.89 
1,443.23 
1,392.83 
1,341.67 
1,289.74 
1,237.04 
1 ,I 83.54 
1 ,I 29.24 
1,074.13 
1,018.1 9 

961.41 
903.78 
845.28 
785.91 
725.65 
664.48 
602.40 
539.38 
475.42 
41 0.50 
344.60 
277.72 
209.83 
140.93 
70.99 

Principal 
& Interest 

4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803 -47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4 , 803 -47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4 , 803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4,803.47 
4.803.7 1 

$9,606.94 

Servicing 
Fee 

179.63 
176.32 
172.96 
169.55 
166.08 
162.57 
159.01 
155.39 
151.71 
147.98 
144.20 
140.36 
136.46 
132.50 
128.48 
124.41 
120.27 
1 16.07 
11 1.81 
107.48 
103.09 
98.63 
94.1 0 
89.51 
84.85 
80.12 
75.31 
70.44 
65.49 
60.47 
55.37 
50.20 
44.95 
39.62 
34.21 
28.72 
23.1 4 
17.49 
1 1.74 

Annually 

Total 
Payment 

4,983.1 0 
4,979.79 
4,976.43 
4,973.02 
4,969.55 
4,966.04 
4,962.48 
4,958.86 
4,955.1 8 
4,951.45 
4,947.67 
4,943.83 
4,939.93 
4,935.97 
4,931.95 
4,927.88 
4,923.74 
4,919.54 
4,915.28 
4,910.95 
4,906.56 
4,902.1 0 
4,897.57 
4,892.98 
4,888.32 
4,883.59 
4 , 878.78 
4,873.9 1 
4 , 868.96 
4,863.94 
4,858.84 
4,853.67 
4,848.42 
4,843.09 
4,837.68 
4,832.1 9 
4,826.61 
4,820.96 
4,815.21 
4.809.63 

Principal 
Balance 

143,700.00 
141,052.03 
138,364.34 
135,636.34 
132,867.41 
130,056.95 
127,204.34 
124,308.93 
121,370.1 0 
11 8,387.1 8 
115,359.51 
112,286.44 
109,167.26 
106,001.30 
102,787.85 
99,526.20 
96,215.62 
92,855.39 
89,444.75 
85,982.95 
82,469.22 
78,902.79 
75,282.86 
71,608.64 
67,879.30 
64,094.02 
60,251.96 
56,352.26 
52,394.08 
48,376.52 
44,298.70 
40,159.71 
35,958.63 
31,694.54 
27,366.49 
22,973.52 
18,514.65 
13,988.90 
9,395.27 
4,732.72 

0.00 
Totals 143,700.00 48,439.04 192,139.04 4,036.59 196,175.63 
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KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AlJTMORlTY 
1024 Capital  Center Drive, Suite 340 

P h o n e  (502) 573-0260 

http;//kia.ky.gov 

John E. Gavingtorn Ill 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 Executive Director 

Fax (502) 573-01 57 

October I 2009 

The Honorable Bobby Burgess, Chairman 
Grant County Sanitary Sewer District 
P.0. Box 460 
Crittenden, KY 41 030 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT 

FEDERALLY ASSISTED WASTEWATER REVOLVING LOAN FUND 
CONDITIONAL COMMITMENT LETTER {A2 09-35) 

Dear Chairman Burgess: 

The Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (“the Authority”) commends your efforts to improve 
public service facilities in your community. On October I 2009, the Authority approved 
your American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (“ARRA”) loan for the Sanitary Sewer 
Extension Phase 1 project subject to the conditions stated below. The total cost of the 
project shall not exceed $1,925,000 of which the Authority loan shall provide $300,000 of 
the funding. Other anticipated funding for the project is reflected in Attachment A. The 
final loan amount will be equal to the Authority’s portion of estimated project cost applied to 
the actual project cost. Attachment: A incorporated herein by reference fully describes the 
project. 

An Assistance Agreement will be executed between the Authority and the Grant County 
Sanitary Sewer District upon satisfactory performance of the conditions set forth in this 
letter, A period of three manths from the date of this letter (January 7, 2010) will be 
allowed for you to meet the conditions set forth in this letter and enter into an Assistance 
Agreement. No extensions shall be granted. Funds will be available for disbursement only 
after execution of the Assistance Agreement. 

The Assistance Agreement and this commitment shall be subject, but not limited to, the 
following terms: 

1. The Authority project loan shall not exceed $300,000, 

2. The loan shall contain principal forgiveness in the amount of 52.1 %. 

Kentucky U nbr id ledS p i ri t corn A n  Equal Opport i jni ty  Employer I\!/F/D 

http://http;//kia.ky.gov
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3" 

4, 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

I O .  

The loan shall bear interest at the rate of 3.0% per annum commencing with 
the first draw of funds. 

The loan shall be repaid over a period not to exceed 20 years from the date 
the loan is closed. 

Interest: shall he payable on the unforgiven amount of actual funds received. 
The first payment shall be due on June I or December I immediately 
succeeding the date of the initial draw offunds, provided that if such June I 
or December I shall be less than three months since the date of the initial 
draw of funds, then the first interest payment date shall be the June I or 
December 1 which is at least six months from the date of the initial draw of 
funds. Interest payments will be due each six months thereafter until the 
loan is repaid. 

Full principal payments will commence on the appropriate June I or 
December I within twelve months from initiation of operation, Full payments 
will be due each six months thereafter until the loan is repaid. 

A loan servicing fee of 0.20% of the annual outstanding loan balance shall 
be payable to the Authority as a part of each interest payment. 

Loan funds will be disbursed after execution of the Assistance Agreement as 
project costs are incurred, 

The Authority loan funds must be expended within six months of the official 
date of initiation of operation. 

Fund "A" loan funds are considered to be federal funds. OMB Circular A-I  33, 
"Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, requires 
that all recipients and subrecipients expending $500,000 or more in a year 
in federal awards must have a single or program-specific audit 
conducted for that year in accordance with the Circular. If the federal 
amount expended plus all other federal funds expended exceeds the 
threshold, you are required to arrange for an A-I 33 audit to be performed by 
an independent, licensed CPA, or in special cases, the Auditor of Public 
Accounts of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The Authority requires an 
annual audit to be preformed for the life of the loan. 

The following is a list of the standard conditions to be satisfied prior to execution of the 
Assistance Agreement or incorporated in the Assistance Agreement. Any required 
documentation must be submitted to the party designated. 
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I. The Authority to Award (bid) package must be submitted to the Division of 
Water for approval within 14 days of bid opening, 

2. The Assistance Agreement must he executed within six (3) months from bid 
opening. 

3. The Borrower must agree to expend all Authority loan funds within six 
months of the date of initiation of operation. 

4. Documentation of final funding commitments from all parties other than the 
Authority as reflected in the credit analysis shall be provided prior to 
preparation of the Assistance Agreement and disbursement of the  loan 
monies, Rejections of any anticipated project funding shall be immediately 
reported and may cause this loan to be subject to further consideration. 

5. The loan must undergo review by the Capital Projects and Bond Oversight 
Committee of the Kentucky Legislature prior to the stale's execution of the 
Assistance Agreement. The committee typically meets monthly on the third 
Tuesday. At this time we know of' no further submission required for their 
review; however, they may request information as needed. 

6, Any required adjustment in utility service rates shall be adopted by 
ordinance, municipal order or resolution by the appropriate governing body of 
the Borrower. Public hearings as required by law shall be held prior to the 
adoption of the service rate ordinance, order, or resolution. Any required 
approvals by the Kentucky Public Service Commission shall be obtained. 

7. All easements or purchases of land shall be completed prior to 
commencement of construction. Certification of all land or easement 
acquisitions shall be provided to the Division of Water. 

8. The Borrower must complete and return to the Authority the attached 
"Authorization For Electronic Deposit of Vendor Payment" Form, 

9. The Authority to Award Package documentation shall be submitted to and 
approved by DQW. 

I O ,  An environmental review, shall be conducted by the  Division of Water for all 
construction projects receiving CWSRF funds, within the term of this binding 
commitment and prior to project bid. 
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I I. Technical plans and specifications and a complete CWSRF specifications 
checklist shall be approved by the Division of Water prior to project bid. 

12. A clear site certificate shall be obtained and DOW representatives shall be 
notified for attendance of the pre-construction conference. 

13, Project changes or additions shall require a complete environmental and 
change order review before they can he included in the CWSRF loan project. 

The following is a list of American Recovery and Reinvestment: Act conditions to be 
satisfied prior to execution of the Assistance Agreement or incorporated in the Assistance 
Agreement. Any required documentation must be submitted to the party designated. 

1, A sign shall be erected at the construction site in a form as prescribed by the 
Authority, The sign shall indicate 'chat project funding has been provided in whole or 
in part by ARRA. 

2, The project specifications must include the ARRA supplemental general conditions. 

3. The project shall comply with the Buy American requirements of ARRA, 

4. The project shall use federal wage rates as described in the DavidBacon Act. 

5b The project shall comply with the reporting requirements of ARRA. 

6. If the project has a "Green Reserve" component, the Borrower must submit a 
Business Case, if required. 

7, The project shall be under construction contract by February I O ,  2010. If this 
deadline is not met, the funding commitment will be rescinded. 

Any special conditions listed below and/or staled in Attachment A must be resolved 

Please inform the Authority of any changes in your financing plan as soon as possible. We 
wish you every success for this project which will benefit both your community and the 
Commonwealth as a whole. 

Since ret y , 

Sandy Wiiiams 
Financial Analyst 
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Attachments 

CC: Scott Hogue, CMW, Inc. 
Division of Water 
Dirk Bedarff, Peck, Shaffer 8( Williams LLP 
State and Local Debt Office, DLG 
Borrower File - Grant County Sanitary Sewer District - A2 09-35 

Please sign and return a copy of this letter indicating your acceptance of this commitment 
and its terms, Also attach the completed “Authorization For Electronic Deposit of Vendor 
Payment” Form. 



EXHIBIT “8” 
(Grant Mobile Home Park Sanitary 

Sewer Services Agreement) 



Steve L. Beshear 
Governor 

Leonard K. Peters 
Secretary 
Energy and Environment Cabinet 

Thomas Nienaber 
Berger and Cox 
401 Madison Avenue 
Covington, KY 41 01 1 

Commonwealth of Kentucky 
Public Service Commission 

21 1 Sower Blvd. 
P.O. Box 615 

Frankfort Kentucky 40602-0615 
Telephoner (502) 564-3943 

Fax: (502) 564-3460 
psc ky.gov 

February 02, 2009 

David L. Armstrong 
Chairman 

James Gardner 
Vice-chairman 

John W. Clay 
Commissioner 

RE: Filing No. TFS2009-00 I 
Special contract between Grant County Sanitary Sewer District and Daugherty 
Higdon and Griffith. 

Dear Thomas Nienaber: 

The above referenced filing has been received and reviewed. An accepted copy is enclosed for 
your files. You may also use the following link to access documents related to this filing. 

h t t p :// p s c . k y . g ov/t rf/T R F L is t F i I i n g s . as px? I D =T F S 20 0 9-0 0 0 0 9 

Ke ntuckyll rt b rid le d Spit it cum 

Sincerely, 



SANITARY SEWER SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Sanitary Sewer Services Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into this zc day of December, 2008 by and between Grant County Sanitary Sewer District, One 
Farrell Drive, Crittenden, Kentucky 41 030 ("District") and Daugherty Higdon and Griffith, a 
Kentucky General Partnership, c/o 7730 U.S. Highway 42, Suite C and E, Florence, Kentucky 
41 042 ("Owxier"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the District is a duly authorized and established Sanitary Sewer District 
created by Ordinarice of the &ant County Fiscal Court (Ordinance No. 26-2002-453) pursuant to 
the provisiom of KRS 67.083 and KRS 67,715 which provides public sanitary sewage and 
wastewater collection and treatment in Grant County, Kentucky and, 

WHEREAS, Owner is the fee title holder to a 56 pad mobile home park located on TJS 
Highway 25, Crittenden, &ant County, Kentucky and more particulaly described in the 
attached Deed and Plat identified as Exhibit "A". Owner's mobile home park is generally known 
as Grant Mobile Home Park ("W") and, 

WHEREAS, the Owner's tenants within tlie MHP are currently receiving sanitary sewage 
and wastewater services by a package sanitary sewage and wastewater treatment plant owned, 
maintained and operated by Owner and located at the MESP and, 

WHEREAS, the District intends to extend sanitary sewage and wastewater service lines 
to the general vicinity of the h4T-P through its Phase I Expansion Pmject to provide Owner 
public sanitary sewer service and thereby remove fkom service the Owner's package sanitary 
sewage and wastewater treatment plant and, 

WIEREAS, the parties hereto have agreed upon terms and conditions to provide for 
continuous sanitary sewage and wastewater treatment service to the MHP and Owner's tenants as 
set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and mutual promises 
and undeitaliings hereinafter specified, the parties agree as follows: 

1. PUWOSE 

The purpose of this Agreement is as follows: 

(a) To provide for the removal of Ow 
wastewater treatment plant current 
wastewater treatment for residents an 

To provide for tlie collection and 
wastewater from current and futiire 

2/4/2009 

@I) 



(c) To provide for tlie continuing maintenance, repair andlor replacement, 
where necessary, o f  necessary inii-astmcture located within the Owner's 
M H P  for the collection and treatment of sanitary sewage and wastewater 
generated by current and hture tenants residing in Owner's ME-IP; 

(d) To provide for the construction and placement of a Submersible Sewage 
Pump Station and related facilities ("Pump Station") at or near the location 
of tlie existing package sanitary sewage and wastewater treatment plant; 

(e) To establish tlie respective party's duties and responsibi'lities relating to the 
collection and treatment of sanitary sewage and wastewater generated by 
current and fii'ctue tenants residing in Owner's MHP; and 

('E) To provide fiiimicial support and contributions Erom Owner to the District 
for the Phase I Sanitary Sewer Project. 

This Agreement is entered into by the parties pursuant to  the provisions of Title 
807 ICAR 5 9 1  l(13) as a "Special Contract". 

Relating to the removal of the existing package sanitary sewage and wastewater 
treatment plant and construction of the proposed Pump Station, the obligations and 
responsibilities of the District and Owner shall be as follows: 

(a) District Responsibilities. 

(i) The District shall install, at the cost and expense of Owner, a Pump 
Station of sufficient size and capacity, as determined by the 
District's engineer, to provide for the collection and transmission 
o f  all sanitary sewage and wastewater generated by the MHP to tlie 
District's treatment plant. It is acknowledged by the parties that the 
P u p  Station shall be constructed at or near the site of the existing 
package treatment plant. The Pump Station shall be constructed in 
conformity with all federal, state, local and district standards and 
specifications, including those contained Section 6 "Submersible 
Sewage Pump Station" of the District's standards and 
specifications (Exhibit T3''). 

(ii) After construction of the P 
responsible for all futur 
to the Pump Station at the Di 
otherwise provided for herein. 

The District shall use the P 
from the MHP to the Di 

(iii) 
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sewage and wastewater generated by Owner’s current and future 
tenants residing in the MHP. 

(iv) The District sliall be responsible for all utility charges, including 
electric, which may be necessary for the day-to-day operation of 
the Pump Station. 

(IT) The District shall instal1 a Row meter (‘cFlour Meter”) adjacent to 
the Pump Station for the purpose of measuring the volume of 
sanitary sewage and wastewata flowing through the Pump Station. 
The District shall be responsible for maintaining tlie Flow Meter at 
its cost and expense uiless otlieiwise provided for herein. The 
District shall test tlie Flow Meter per the manufacturer‘s 
specifications to insure its accuracy in measuring sanitary sewage 
and wastewater flows through the Pump Station. The District shall, 
at a minimum, test the Flow Meter consistent with any and all 
existing federal, state, local or district rules and regulations. If any 
federal, state, local or district rules and regulations are adopted 
subsequent to the execution of this Agreement wliich requires a 
inore Cequent testing of the Flow Meter, the District shall comply 
with those testing requirements. 

Owner may, at any time during the term of this Agreement, request 
tlie District to test the Flow Meter to calculate its accuracy in 
measuring sanitary sewage and wastewater flows througli the 
Pump Station. In the event that such test indicates that the FIovll 
Meter is accurate within 6%, tlie Owner shall reimburse the 
District for the cost of such testing. In the event the Flow Meter 
test indicates that the Flow Meter is inaccurate at a rate greater 
than 3%, the District shall, at its cost and expense, replace and/or 
repair the Flow Meter to accurately measure sanitsuy sewage and 
wastewater flows through the Pump Station. In such event, the 
District shall be responsible for the cost of the requested Flow 
Meter test. 

(vi) The District shall be responsible for providing sanitary sewage and 
wastewater treatment services to all MHP tenants subject to the 
provisions set forth in paragaph 4 herein and all other Rules, Laws 
and Regulations of any and all federal, state or local govenmental 
agencies and the District. 

It is contemplated by tlie parties 
to Owner‘s mobile home p 
transmission and collection li 
Norfolk Southern Railway. 

(vii) 
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Railway should assess any License Fee, the District shall be 
respansibre for all such License Fees charged. 

(viii) The District shall be responsible at its cost and expense to install 
any and a11 other transmission or collection lines as a part of the 
Phase I Extension Project which are reasonably necessary to 
provide adequate sanitary sewage collection and treatment to 
Owner's ME-TP. 

(b) Owner's Responsibilities. 

(i) Owner shall provide the District with reasonable access, at no cost, 
(including permanent and temporary easements) to t'he site of the 
Pump Station to enable the District to reasonably construct mid 
thereafier maintain the Pump Station. 

(ii) The Owiier shall grant to the District temporary and pennanent 
easements which may be reasonably necessary for the continued 
maintenance and operation of the Pump S tation. Such easements 
shall include a permanent access easement to be granted to the 
District for the purpose of kture maintenance, testing and repair of 
the Pump Station. Owner shall also provide temporary and 
permanent utility easements to provide electric service for the day- 
to-day operation and maintenance of the Pump Station. All 
permanent and temporary easements shall be in substantially that 
foiinat as contained in the attached sample easement identified as 
Exhibit "C". 

Any and all temporary or pernianeiit easements reasonably 
necessary for the construction, maintenance and operation of the 
Punip Station contemplated herein shall he granted by Owner to 
District at no cost. At the execution of tb is  Agreement, Owner and 
District achowledge that the exact location, scope and extent of 
the temporary and permanent easenieiit wlGcli are reasonably 
necessary to construct the Pump Station are unknown. The 
location, scope aid extent of any temporary or pennanent 
easements shall be determined by District's engineer. The District 
shall exercise dl reasonable care and work with the Owner in 
locating the Pwnp Station site and the identification of any and all 
temporary or p ennan en t easement 

The Owner shall grant to the Di 
and permanent easements which 
the District to provide sanitary s 
park, including but not limited 
gravity line easements. 
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(iii) 

(iv) 

Owner shall be responsible for the cost of the oi-iginal construction 
of tlie Pump Station aid all costs related to tlie installation of 
utility service, includiiig electric and water service, to the Pump 
Station site. Ln the event that Phase 3 electric service is required for 
the operation of the Pump Station, the cost of delivering Phase 3 
electric senrice to the Pump Station site shall be at the cost and 
expense of Owner. 

It is acluiowledged by the parties hereto that the District will not 
use any portion of the existing package sanitary sewage treatment 
plant currently servicing the MHP. Owner shall be responsible for 
removing from service the existing package sanitary sewage a id  
wastewater treatment plant at Owner's cost and expense. The 
District may, in its discretion, request of the Owner that the 
District be permitted to observe and oversee the removal of 
materials and equipment from the existing package sanitary 
sewage and wastewater treatment plant. If the District elects to 
oversee the removal, Owner shall reasonably notifjl the District of 
the time that the package sanitary sewage waste water txeatment 
plant will be removed. At no time shall the Owner discharge or 
otherwise deposit any rnateriaI, sludge or debris from the existing 
package sanitary sewer and wastewater treatment plant into the 
District's sanitary sewer lines without the prior consent of the 
District. Owner shall not damage or otherwise restrict the operation 
of the Pump Station during tlie period of removal of the package 
sanitary sewage and wastewater treatment plant. 

(a) It is aclcnowledged by the parties hereto that as of the execution of this 
Agreement there are existing sanitary sewer lines located witliiii tlie MHP which were 
constructed and maintained by Owner and/or Owner's predecessor in title. Those collection and 
transmission lines are maintained for the purpose of collecting sanitary sewage and wastewater 
fiom Owner's tenants and delivery to the existing package sanitary sewage and wastewater 
treatment plant. Owner represents arid warrants that the existing collection and transmission lines 
are in a reasonable state of repair. Owner further represents and warrants that it does not have a 
set of "as-built" plans and drawings which outline the location, size and configuration of the 
existing sanitary sewer lines within the MHP. 
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(b) After construction of the Purnp Station t & J & $ l l p & ~ f  *s, *N 
sole cost and expense, continue to provide all futrxre ma eriance, -remF, &v3c+pjLor 
replacement, where necessary, of the existing collection and tra&nission lines lbEEH-W&in the I 
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necessary at any time in the future for the reasonable colle 
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and wastewater to the Pump Station fiom MHP tenants, such supplemental collection and 
transmission line consttxction cost shall be completed by Owner at its sole cost and expense. 

(c) In the event any existing or future constructed collection and transmission 
sewer lines located within the MHP require maintenance, repair and/oi replacement, Owner shall 
notify the District of such anticipated construction, maintenance or repair. All future 
maiiitenance, repair, replacement and/or new construction of transmission or collection lines 
within the MHP shall be completed consistent with the then existing standards, specifications, 
rules and regulations imposed by any federal, state or local goveziunental agencies and the 
District. 

(d) In the event the District determines that any of the existing or fifcure 
constructed collection and transmission lines located within the MHP require maintenance, repair 
or replacement, the District shall forthwith notify the Owner of such determination. Upon 
notification, Owner shall undertake such repair, maintenance or replacement within a reasonable 
time. In the event Owner fails or refuses to undertake such necessary repair, maintenance or 
replacement within a reasonable time, the District may, in its absolute discretion, undertake such 
repair, replacement or constixction and charge all such related costs to the Owner. Any and all 
such charges unpaid by Owner shd1 constitute a Lien upon the real estate of the MHP until paid. 

(e) All construction of any future collection andlor transmission lines shall be 
constructed in conformity with all then existing federal, state, local and District laws, rules and 
regulations, 

(f) In the event the District is required to initiate any action to enforce the 
provisions of this paragraph 3 for the collection of any sums expended by the District relative to 
the repair, maintenance and/or replacement of existing or fixture constructed collection and 
transmission lines w i t h  the MHP, Owner shall indemnifgr and hold lianiiless the District for any 
and all such cost incurred, including brit not limited to reasonable attorney's fees and cost of 
collection. 

4. MEP TENANT SERVICE B a L m G  

(a) The District shall be responsible for providing sanitary sewage and 
wastewater treatment for all current and fkture residents of the h4HP as required by the District's 
then existing Tariff and Rate Schedule as approved by the Public Senrice Comnission ("PSC"). 

@) The District shall be respomible for providing billing of all tenants located 
within the MHP for sanitary sewage and wastewater treatment consistent with the District's then 
established aid approved Rate Tariff. Owner shall not be res 
sanitary sewer charges assessed to Owner's tenants. Owner 
personnel shall have reasonable access to the IXHP for the p u p  
tenants as may be reasonably necessary from time to time. EFFECTIVE 
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Owner agrees that i t  shall comply with a11 existing federal, state, local and district 
1x1 es, laws, regulations, specifications and tariffs relating to the collectioii a i d  transmission of 
sanitary sewage and wastewater fi-om Owner's tenants to tlie point of the Pump Station. Owner 
agrees that it shall adopt niles arid regulations for the M N P  which shall incorporate any and all 
federal, state, local and/or. District rules, laws and regulations relating to the disposal of sanitary 
sewage and wastewater into the District's sanitary sewage and wastewater treatnieiit system. For 
purposes of this provision, Chner acknowledges that it has reviewed and is familiar with the 
existing Tariff, Standards and Specifications adopted by the District and approved by the PSC, 
copies of which are attached hereto and identified as Exhibit "D"; and the current Grant County 
Sanitary Sewer Ordinance, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 
"E". In the event any such rules or regulations as contained in Exhibits "D" or "E" are altered, 
modified or otherwise changed, subsequent to the execution OF this Agreement, Owner agrees 
tliat it shall amend it MHp's rules and regulations to reflect such amendmeiits or changes. 

It is acknowledged by the parties hereto that the Pump Station to be coiistructed 
by tlie District as provided for in paragraph 2(a) herein shall service only those current and fiiture 
tenants residing in Owner's MHP based upon the current MKP capacity of approximately 60 
mobile home pads. In the event that Owner should, subsequent to the execution of this 
Agreement, expand or otherwise increase the number of imbile home pads within the MHP over 
and above the current 60 pads, any and all infi-astructure which may be necessary to accomplish 
such MHP expansion shall be constructed in confoiinity with the then existing rules and 
regulations, standards and specificatioiis adopted by all federal, state or local govemr7iental entity 
and the Distict. In tlie event of such expansion, the terms and conditions contained herein shall 
be binding upon the Owner and such MHP addition unless otherwise noted. 

If my  expansion of the existing MHP is undei-talten by Owner subsequent to tlie 
execution of this Agreement and such expansion requires the installation of a higlier capacity 
Pump Station to accommodate that expansion and/or any additional sai-Ltazy sewage and waste 
water generated thereby, any and all srich cost incurred relative to the replacement and/or 
upgrade of the Punip Station shall be paid by Owner at Owner's cost and expense. 

In the event o f  any expansion of the MHP, Owner shall take all reasonable steps 
to insure that sanitary sewage generated from the expanded MHP shall be piped directly to the 
Pump Station without using any cwrent collection and transmission lines existing within tlie 
current MHP. If sanitary sewage service to the MElP expansion area can be accomplislied 
without using collection and transmission lines const 
this Agreement, the terrns set forth in paragraph 7 of this A 
expansion area. MHP expansion shall be constructed in 
existing federal, state, local and district rules, regulations 

2/4/2009 
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traisinission lines constructed by Owner prior to the execution of this Agreement, all of the 
temis and coiiditions set forth herein shall apply to the MHP expansion. 

It is ackiiowledged by tlie parties hereto that storm water, ground water or other 
materials and substances (“Infiltratio~l”) may from time-to-time enter the collection and 
traisinission Iines located within the ME-IP and discharged into the P m p  Station to be 
constnicted by tlie District. Owner represents and warrants that it has, in the period priox to the 
execution of this Agreement, taken all reasonable precautions and provided all reasonable 
niaiiiteriance and repair to the infrastructure, collection and transmission lines located within the 
MHP to prevent such Infiltration. Notwitlistanding such due diligence, the parties acknowledge 
that Iiifiltration may enter the collection and trammission lines for discharge to the Pump Station 
and treatment plant of the District. As partial consideration far the delivery of sanitary sewage 
and wastewater service to the M H F ,  Owner agrees to be responsible for the cost incui;red by the 
District in the treatment of such hifiltration passing through the Pump Station. Calculation of and 
charges for the treatment of all such Infiltration shall be determined as follows: 

On tlie last day of each March, June, September and December following 
tlie construction of the Pump Station, the District shall read the Flow 
Meter located at the P m p  Station to determine the gross volume of 
sanitary sewage and wastewater passing through the Pump Station. 

The District shall calculate the number of gallons of sariitmy sewage and 
wastewater generated b y  MEP residents during the tlxee calendar month 
period preceding the reading of the Flow Meter. For purposes of this 
Agreement, the volume of sanitary sewage and wastewater flows 
generated by MHP tenants shall equal the total number of gallons of water 
purchased by all M33P residents as reflected in water consumption records 
of each tenant with Bullock Pen Water District during the three calendar 
month period preceding the Flow Meter reading. 

The District shall calculate the amount of IiifiItr-ation flow by taking the 
total number of gallons passing through the Flow Meter at the Pump 
Station less the amount of gallons purchased by Mf3P residents as 
determined by Bullock Pen Water DishkA’s billing records. The excess 
shall be deterniined to be “Infiltration Flow”. 

Owner shall pay to the District a charge for tlie total Tnfiltration Flow 
based upon the District‘s then approved s 
its Tariff, For example, if the total sanit 
through the Flow Meter at the Pump Sta 
the period October, November, Decem 
purchase a total of 1,350,000 gallons of 
upon Bullock Pen Water District’s w 



District for 50,000 gallons of lnfiltratjon Flow based upon sanitary sewer 
rates as contained iu the District's then approved Tariff. 

The District shall mail to tlie Owner on or before the 1 5t" day of tlie month 
following the Flow Meter reading a notice o f  charges identifying the 
calculations and charges billed for that quarter. Owner shall pay to the 
District the ainozmt charged to Owner on or before the 30th day of the 
month following the Flow Meter reading. In the event Owner should fail 
to pay such charge withiii 15 days, the outstanding Pump Station charges 
shall bear interest at the rate of 3 % per month until paid. Unpaid charges 
for Tnfiltration Flow shall constitute a lien 011 the real estate of the MHP. 

The District may, in its discretion, run additional Flow Meter tests during 
periods of heavy precipitation for the purpose of  assessing the scope and 
extent o f  excessive infiltration resulting from rain, storm or other ground 
water. In the event that such Flow Meter tests confirm that flow capacities 
exceed 125% o f  the average daily capacity flow during any 24 hour 
period, District shall notifjr Owner of such excessive infiltration. In that 
event, Owner agrees to identify, locate aid repair the source of excessive 
infiltration witliin a reasonable time. In the event Owner fails to take all 
reasonable steps to eliminate excessive infiltration flows, the District may, 
in its discretion, undertake the responsibility to eliminate such excess 
infiltration flows. Any and all cost or expense incwred by the District in 
taking such action shall be reimbursed by Owner. 

If at any time the pump station should overflow and discharge raw sewage 
and wastewater into the surrounditig areas and such discharge is the result 
of excessive infiltration originating from the mobile home park or is the 
result of debiis or materials discliarged into the sanitary sewer collection 
system within the mobile home park by Owner aiid/ar Owner's tenants, the 
Owner shall indemnify and hold hmnless the District €or any claims and 
causes of action brought against the District as a result of such spillage. In 
the event any governmental agency brings any regulatory or other action 
against the District as a result o f  such spillage, Owner shall indeinniQ and 
hold harmless the District from any and all such actio11 including the 
payment of any and all fines or other charges assessed against the Lktrict 
as a result of such spillage. 

Any and all notice provjded for hereiii shall be 
such notice is deposited in the United States Mail, postage prep 
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As to District: (?rant County Sanitary Sewer District 
Attn: Ms. Paula Massie, Office Manager 
One Farrell Drive 
P.0 Box 188 
Crittenden, KY 41 030 

As to Owner: Dauglier-ty Wigdon and Griffith 
c/o 7730 T1.S. Higliway 42, Suite C and €3 
FIorsiice, Kentucky 4 I042 

(a) Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the District fi-om any and all 
claims, causes of action or demands made by any WTP resident arising by, from or through the 
malfunction 01' failure of or tlie collection and trausinissioii lines located within tlie MHP. Such 
indenmification shall include but not be limited to any and all reasoliable costs, fees, charges, 
attorney's fees and the like, incurred by the District in the defense of my and all such claim or 
cause of action. 

(b) Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the District for any and all 
damages, expenses or charges incurred by t l ie  District resulting by, fkom or throug31 Owner's 
violation of any rule, federal, state, local or District rule, law or regulation. 

(c) In thc event that Owner should default or otherwise materially breach any 
term, condition or covenant set forth herein, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the 
District f!rom any and all claim, cause of action or dernand brought against the District arising 
from such material default or breach. Such indemnification shall include but. not be limited to 
any and all reasonable costs, fees, charges, attorney's fees and the Iike incurred by the District in 
the defense or prosecution o f  any such claim or cause of action, 

It is agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement shall be submitted to the 
PSC for consideratioil and approval. As consideration for that approval, the parties hereto 
acknowledge that the following special circumstances exist which necessitate the approval of the 
Agreement: 

(a) R.emova1 of .the package saiiitary sewage and wastewater treatment plant 
would best promote the public health and welfare of the MF3P residents 
and the surrounding community; 

Removal of the package sanitary sewag (b) 
would eliminate the unnecessary and o 
Owner to maintain and cover the costs r 

ing financial E iEmTmi ty  of 
ve to its o erat%fY2009 
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Avoid the financial burden of requiring the Owner to replace existing 
collection and transmission idi-asti-uchu-e lines located within the A4HP 
due to thcir current and existing location, state of repair and the iilce; 

MHP residents and the surrounding community would be best served by 
the treatment of sanitary sewage and wastewater by the District in an 
established sanitary sewage and wastewater treatment plant; 

Eliminate the financial burden of the Owner to conform to all existing 
federal, state and local niles and regulatioizs regarding the collection and 
treatnieiit of sanitary sewage and wastewater; 

Eliminate the need to replace existing infrastructure within the mobile 
home park which would be, under current conditions, impractical and 
fiscally unreasonable; and 

Assessment of the existing District's approved tap-in fee of $1,000.00 per 
customer could not be equitably assessed against Qwner's tenants and that 
payment of the lump sun fee as provided for in paragraph 1 I represents a 
more equitable charge in lieu thereof. 

Rased upon the foregoing special circumstance, Owner and District acknowledge that 
approval of this Agreement by the PSC would be in the parties and comniunity's best interest. 

In consideration of the extension of sanitaxy sewer to the MHP by the District, 
Owner agrees to pay to the District a lunip sun] payment of One Thousand Dollars ($l,OOO.OO), 
said sum to be paid by Owner upon the District obtaining all approvals of this Agreement and 
substantial completion of the Phase I Project whereby District is able to accept for transmission 
and treatment all sanitary sewage and wastewater fkom the MHP. Owner acluiowledges that the 
consideration provided for herein represents a fail- and reasonable charge for the services and 
benefits to Owner, Owner acknowledges that this Agreenient is entered into freely a i d  
voluntarily without coercion or other inducenient other than those considerations specified 
herein. Specifically, it is acknowledged by Owner that implementation of  the terms and 
conditions set forth herein constitute a cooperative and joint effort of the District and Owner to 
minimize the financial burden upon Owner in providing public sanitary sewage and wastewater 
treatment service to Owner's tenants. Owner aclmowledges that the cost uf obtaining sanitary 
sewer service fkom the District could be sigiificantly greater than the consideration and financial 
agreed to herein based upon existing Statutes and Kentucky A 
actinowledges that payment of the consideration lierein I 

compromise with the District. 
@@S,&@k* @f$&$kS,*pJ 
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(a) Owner shall maintain and operate all saiiitary sewer infrastructure 
facilities, including collection and transmission lines located within the MHI>, in conipliance 
with all federal: state and local regulatory Laws, Rules and Regulations and in conipliance with 
all Rules, Laws aiid Regulations of the District. In the event that any claim, cause of action or 
demand is brought against the District as a result of Owner's non-compliance with those 
regulatory provisions, Owner shall indemnify and hold the District harmless therefiom, including 
any cost incurred by the District in defense of any such action. 

(b) The District shall provide sanitary sewer service and  maintain tlie Pmnp 
Station in conformity with a11 federal, state and local replatory Laws, Rules and Regulations 
and in compliance with all Rules, Laws and Regulations of the Distiict. hi the event that any 
claim is made against Owner as a result of the District's non-compliance with those regulatory 
provisions, the District shall indemnify and hold the Owner hannless tlierefioi-ii. 

(c) In the event the Owner is charged with regulatory violation, Owner shall 
forthwith notify the District of sucli action. Owner shall fortliwith take ally arid a11 necessary 
action to resolve any and all such claim at Owner's cost and expense. In the event Owner fails or 
refuses to resolve such regulatory claim, the District may in its sole discretion, talce any and all 
action necessary to resolve sucli regulatory claim. Any and all cost incurred by the District in 
resolving that claim may be charged to the Owner. Any aiid all unpaid expenses or cost incurred 
by the District slid1 coiistitute a lien on the real estate of the h4EP. If the District is required to 
initiate any action against Owner for the collection of those costs and expenses, the Distr-ic; shall 
be entitled to recover all reasonable cost of collection, including reasonable attoniey's fees. 

13. PUMP STATION CBNSTR'IJCTION 

It is agreed by the paxties hereto that the Pump Station referred to in paragraph 
2(h) may be constructed by Owner in Owner's discretion, fri the event Owner uridertakes tlie 
construction of the Pump Station, sucli construction shall be subject to the following terms and 
conditions: 

(9 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

All aspects relating to the design and construction o f  the Punp  Station 
shall be completed at the sole cost and expense of  Owner. 

All Pump Station construction shall be conducted under the direct 
supervision of the District andlor its engineers azid designees. Any cost 
incurred by the Diskict relating to supervision of the construction project 
undertaken by Owner shall be paid for by Owner. 

All Punip Station construction shall 
with all current District standards 
construction as amended (Exhibit "B"). 

Any Pump Station construction uiid 
the approval of all governmental ag 
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PSC, Kentucky Division of Water and the like. Any cost incurred by 
Owner in the construction of tlie Pump Station relating to permits, fees, or 
charges assessed by any governmental agency shall b e  paid for by Owner. 

(v) Owner shall be responsible for obtaining all governmental inspections 
upon completion of the Pum-np Station construction at Owner's cost and 
expense. Upon issuance of the appropriate inspection approvals, Owner 
shall maintain ownership o f  the Pump Station fox a period of one year 
thereafter ("Warranty Period"). During the Wan anty Period, Owner shall 
be responsible for a11 maintenance, repair and upkeep of  the Pump Station. 
Upon expiration of the Wmaiity Period, Owner shall deliver title to the 
Distxict. Owner agrees to execute any and all documents necessary to 
effectuate the transfer of ownership of the Pump Station to the District. In 
the event that any governmental agency fails or refuses to pennit or 
otherwise authorize Owner to coiistruct the Pump Station for. any reason 
wliatsoever, Owner agrees that construction of the Putnp Station shall be 
undertaken by the District. If required, Owner shall be responsible for 
obtaining governmental approval of all cnnstruction to be undertaken by 
Owner prior to Owner's cornnzeiicement of construction. h the event 
Owner is unable to obtain timely approval and permission to proceed with 
coiistruction of the Pump Station, if required, the District may construct 
the Pump Station as provided for in paragraph 2(a). 

(vi) It is acknowledged by the parties hereto that timing of coiistructing the 
sanitary sewer lines necessary to sene the METP and construction of the 
Pump Station is critical. To that end, both the Disbict arid Owner shall 
work together and coordinate their efforts to insure that the availability of 
sanitary sewer service to the MHP occurs at the same time the Pump 
Station is conipleted and available for delivery of sanitary sewer to the 
District. The District shall provide Owner tlnrou&out the Phase I 
Extensiori Project 011 a periodic basis status reports lo insure Owner aniple 
opportunity to complete construction of the Pump Station in a timely 
mariner. It is agreed by the parties hereto that the District shall, upon 
availability of sanitary sewer service notify the Owner that ffie sanitary 
sewer tines are in place and available to accept sanitary sewage .from the 
MHP. Owner shall within 30 days of such notice conplete construction of 
the pump station and have all necessary governmental approvals and 
permits in place to allow delivery of sanitary sewage through the pump 
station and into the District's system. In the event Owner does not 'have 
tlie pump station online on or befo 
notice, Owner shall pay to the District s 
have been payable based on water C O ~ S U  

MHP. All other elements of this A 
billing shalI commence 30 days after 
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(a) The District may, in its absolute discretion, direct the flow of sanitary 
sewage into the Pump Station ftom areas serviced or to be serviced by the District and not a part 
of C)wner's MRP. hi that event, the District shall not allow such additional sanitary sewage 
through tlie Flow Meter to be installed by the District. If any improvements are required l o  the 
Pump Station as a result of that additional sanitary sewage being directed througli the Pump 
Station, any and a11 such improvenzents, upgrades or replacements sliall be done at the cost and 
expense oftlie District. 

(b) It is acluiowledged and agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement 
and all of" its term arid conditions shall not cozistitute nor be constixed as an acceptance of or 
dedication by die Owner to the District of the existing collection and transmission lines or other 
sanitary sewer iizfiastructure located within the MHT. 

(c) This Agreement shall be binding upon the respective parties, their 
successors a12d assigns. 

(d) Implementation of this Agreement and all of its terns and conditions shall 
be subject to the approval of the PSC and any and all other governmental agencies and 
authorities. 

(e) This Agreement may not be changed, altered or modified unless it be done 
in writing arid signed by all parties. 

(f) This Agreenient has been approved by the District pursuant to duly 
authorized and adopted action of its Board of Conmissioners as required by law. 

(g) The parties agree that this Agreement shall be recorded in the Grant 
County Clerlc's records wllich shall he binding upon the Owner and all successors in title. 

(h) It is acknowledged by the District and Owner that this Agreement is 
entered into for tlie purpose of facilitating the Phase I Expansion Project currently being 
undertakeii by the District. It is further acknowledged by Owner that the Phase I Expansion 
Project in large part is funded by grants received by the District without which tlie Phase I 
Expansion Project could riot be undertaken. In the event that the receipt of gants currently 
anticipated by the District are not received or if the Phase I Expansion Project cannot move 
forward due to a lack of funding or any other reason, this Agreement and all o f  the abligatioIis, 
covenants and responsibilities of the respective parties widertalta~ herein shall terminate with 
neither party having any fkrther legal obligation iiereun 
Owner: that the District, by the execution of this Agreement, 
the Phase I Expansion Project thereby providing sanitary s 
event the District should at any time subsequent to flie exe 
its absolute and sole discretion and judgment that the Phase 
undertaken. In sudi event, this Agreement sliall terminate 
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legal obligations to the other arising by, fioni or tiiougli the terms, conditions and covenants set 
forth herein. 

JN WITNESS MrHEREOF, the parties hereunto set their hand 011 the day arid year first 
above witten. 

GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER 
DTSTRlCT 

BY: 

COMNONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

COUNTY OF GRANT 

SURSCRIBED, SWORN TO AND ACKNOWLEDGED before me by the said GRANT 
COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTR.TCT, by and through BOBBY BTJRGESS, Chainnan, 
this -25 day of December, 2008. 
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DA'IJGHERTY HIGDON AND GRTFFITH, 
a Reiitucky General Parhership , 

Witness 

%Ti tness 

Witness 

Witness 

Witness 

I;. M. DA.UGHEy 

BY: - /+-- 4ORC €€I DON, General Partiier 

Witness 

COMMONWEALTH OF TCE!,NTUCi(.Y 

COUNTY OF GRANT 

SUBSCRIBED, SWORN TO AND ACKNOWLEDGED before me by the said 
DAUGHER'TY HIGDON AND GRIFFITH, by and through L. M. DAUGKTERY, General 
Partner, this day of December, 2008. 

My Coinmission Expires: 

COMNONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

SUBSCRIBED, SWORN TO AND 
DAUGHERTY HIGDON AND GR.IFFITH, 
Partner, this day of December, 2008. 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

COUNTY OF GRANT 

SUE;SCRIBED, SWORN TO AND ACKNOWLEDGED before me by the said 
, General DATJGHERTY HIGDON AND GRIFFITH, by and through&-@ &% 6& 

Partner, this G, day of December, 2008. 

~y coimiission Expnes: G - / ~ ~ J L ~ / J  
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EXHIBIT “9” 
(Financial Report) 



ESTIMATED OPERATIONAL COSTS 

I. UTILITIES 

It is estimated that the utility expense relating to each pump to be installed in the Project 
on a monthly basis would be estimated at: 

Pump Classification Monthly Utility Cost 
1. 3 10 gpm pump $250.00 per month 
2. 1 480 gpin pump $250.00 per month 
3. 1 72 gpm pump $150.00 per month 
4. 1 57 gpin pump $100.00 per month 
5. 1 39 gpin pump $ 75.00 per montli 
6. 1 30 gpin pump $ 75.00 per month 

$900.00 per month 

11. LABOR COST 

During the initial year of operation, it is anticipated that the additional employee/labor 
expenses associated with the Project will be nominal. It is estimated that the total employee 
hours expended on a weekly basis necessary to inspect all pump stations and to download meter 
readings would be approximately 5 hours per week (21.5 per month). The average cost of 
employee wages plus benefits for those employees who will be assigned the responsibility of 
checking on pump stations is approximately $22.50 per hour. The estimated monthly cost for 
employee wages and benefits associated with the project would be approximately $500.00 per 
month. 

111. SUPPL,IES/MATERIAL, COST 

It is anticipated that the additional cost of treatment for waste generated by customers in 
the Project will be nominal. 

SUPERINTENDENT WILLIAM CATLETT 
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independent  Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Commissioners 
Grant County Sanitary Sewer District 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Grant County Sanita Sewer District 
(District) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 and the related statements of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the District's management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform our audits to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Grant County Sanitary Sewer District as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, 
and the results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Govemmenf Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated April 24, 
2009 on our consideration of the Grant County Sanitary Sewer District's internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an 
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Audifiug Standards and should be read 
in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audits. 

The management's discussion and analysis on pages 3-7 and the supplementary schedules on 
page 19 are not a required part of the basic financial statements, but are supplementary information 
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have 
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding 
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. 
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Van Gorder, Walker & Company, Inc. 
Erlanger, Kentucky 
April 24, 2009 
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GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEETS 
December 31,2008 and 2007 

2008 2007 
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Trade 
Bullock Pen Water District 

Accrued liabilities 
Trash collection payable 
Note payable - Grant County Fiscal Court 
Unamortized bond premium 

Total Current Liabilities 

$ 45,231 $ 19,187 
2,414 2,122 

902 1,160 
6,101 

21,000 21,000 
1,402 1,402 

70,949 50,972 

Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets 
Revenue bonds - current portion 62,000 60,000 
Construction accounts payable 69,207 
Customer deposits 59,539 64,148 
Accrued interest on customer deposits '1 45 157 
Accrued interest payable 26,459 27,359 

Total Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets 21 7,350 151,664 

Long-Term Obligations 
Bonds 
Unamortized bond premium 

Total Long-Term Obligations 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

1,240,000 1,302,000 
18,340 19,'742 

1,258,340 1,321,742 

1,546,639 1,524,378 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,423,162 3,384,389 
Restricted 79;i 96 71,699 
Unrestricted 414,342 31 9,099 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 3,9'16,700 3,775,187 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 5,463,339 $ 5,299,565 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
For the Years Ended December 31,2008 and 2007 

2008 2007 
OPERATING REVENUES 

User fee revenue 
Other service revenues 

$ 594,793 $ 602,830 
19,401 '1 6,419 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 6 14,194 61 9,249 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Operations and maintenance expense 
Depreciation and amortization 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

OPERATING INCOME 

NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE) 

Investment income 
Amortization of bond premium 
interest on long-term obligations 
Interest on customer deposits 
Amortization of debt discount and expense 
Loss an disposal of fixed assets 

NET NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE) 

NET INCOME 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1 

NET ASSETS, DECEMBER 31 

330,127 292,173 
158,724 146,955 

488,851 439, I28 

125,343 180,121 

4,492 4,994 
1,402 1,402 

(63,683) (65,83 1) 
(312) (31 2) 

(2,436) (2,436) 
( 1  5,468) 

(60,537) (77,65 1 )  

64,806 102,470 

76,707 21,000 

141,513 123,470 

3.775.1 87 3.651.71 7 > ,  ' ,  

$ 3,916,700 $ 3,775,187 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Years Ended December 31,2008 and 2007 

2008 2007 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Received from customers 
Paid to suppliers for goods and services 
Paid to or on behalf of employees for services 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of investments 
Interest on investments 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal paid on long term debt 
Interest paid on long term debt 
Acquisition and construction of fixed assets 
Contributed capital received 
increase in restricted cash 
Increase (Decrease) in customer deposits 

NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-END OF YEAR 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED 
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization 
Change in operating assets and liabilities 

(increase)/Decrease in receivables 
(Increase)/Decrease in prepaid assets 
Increase/(Decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase/(Decrease) in other accrued liabilities 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

NON-CASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Capital assets (transmission mains, hydrants, etc.) contributed J the Di: 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

Interest paid 
income taxes paid 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

ict 

$ 6'18,400 $ 6'15,'173 
(303,400) (313,089) 

(6,158)- __ (5,686) 
308,842 296,398 

1,549 (96,825) --- 

(60,000) (56,000) 
(64,907) (66,826) 
(61,415) (66,299) 

3,000 2 1,000 
(3,970) (1 2,613) 
(4,609) (1,637) 

(191,901) (182,375) 

17,198 

110,675 

11 8,490 

127,873 .- - 
$ 246,363 $ 127,873 

$ 125,343 $ 180,121 

158,724 146,955 

4,206 (4,075) 
593 (732) 

20,234 (25,985) 
(258) - 114 

$ 308,842 $ 296,398 

$ 64,907 $ 66,826 
$ $ 
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GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2008 and 2007 

NOTE 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Grant County Sanitary Sewer District (District) is a sanitary sewer utility that was established 
by the Grant County Fiscal Court on October 2, 2002. It was organized and operates under the 
provisions of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, Chapters 67 and 74. The District owns and 
operates sewer collection and treatment facilities that provide sanitary sewer service to 
residential, commercial, and industrial customers in Grant County, Kentucky. In 2003, the 
District appointed Commissioners and began negotiations to acquire the necessary assets from 
the City of Crittenden to begin operations as a sewer utility. On April 23, 2004 the District 
acquired the cash and infrastructure assets from the City of Crittenden Sewer Department in 
exchange for assuming the related bond debt and associated unamortized premiums and issue 
costs. 

Reaulatorv Requirements 
The District is subject to the regulatory authority of the Kentucky Public Service Commission 
(“PSC”) pursuant to KRS 278.040. 

Basis of Accountinq 
The District’s financial statements are presented on the full accrual basis in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The District applies all 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements as well as Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations, and the Accounting 
Principles Board (APB) Opinions of the Committee on Accounting Procedure issued on or before 
November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements. 

The District has adopted GASB Statements 33 through 49, and related interpretations issued 
through December 31, 2008. Statement No. 33 required capital contributions to be recorded in 
the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. Statement 34 and subsequent 
statements and interpretations required certain other changes in terminology, format and content, 
as well as inclusion of the management’s discussion and analysis as required supplementary 
information. 

All activities of the District are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) reporting 
entity. Proprietary entities are used to account for operations that are (a) financed and operated 
in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that 
the cost (expense, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on 
a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the 
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, 
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability, or other purposes. 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the District is determined by its 
measurement focus. The transactions of the District are accounted for on a flow of economic 
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities 
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GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2008 and 2007 

associated with the operations are included on the balance sheet. Net assets (i”e., total assets 
net of total liabilities) are segregated into “invested in capital assets, net of related liabilities”; 
“restricted”; and “unrestricted” components. 

Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the balance sheets and statement of cash flows, the District considers all 
unrestricted highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be 
cash equivalents. 

Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined under the First-In, First- 
Out (FIFO) method. Market is determined on the basis of estimated realizable market values. 
The District has no measurable inventory to report at December 31,2008 and 2007. 

Distribution Svstem, Buildina, and Equipment 
Property, plant, collection lines and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated over their 
estimated useful lives using the straight line method. Upon sale or retirement, the cost and 
related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and the resulting 
gain or loss is included in the “Nan-Operating Income (Expense)” portion of results of operations. 

Miscellaneous Deferred Charaes 
Bond premiums and costs of issuance are deferred and amortized over the life of the bond. The 
costs associated with organizing the District have been accumulated and are being amortized 
over a five year period. 

CaDital Contributions 
In conformity with the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 33 
- Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-Exchange Transactions, amounts related to 
customer contributions in aid of construction have been reported as other income in the District’s 
income statement. These contributions represent customer tap-in fees and other contributions to 
recover the costs of extensions of the collection system. The District also includes estimated cost 
figures for those lines contributed by outside contractors. During 2008 and 2007 these 
contributions consisted of the following: 

Source 2008 2007 
Tap in fees paid by new customers $ 3,000 $ 21,000 
Grant receivable from state for sewer line extension project 73,707 

Totals $ 76,707 $ 21,000 

Income Tax Status 
The District is exempt from federal and state income taxes since it is a governmental entity. 
Accordingly, the financial statements include no provision for income taxes. 
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GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2008 and 2007 

Use of Estimates 
The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions regarding certain types of assets, 
liabilities, revenues and expenses. Such estimates primarily relate to unsettled transactions and 
events as of the date of the financial statements. Accordingly, upon settlement, actual results 
may differ from estimated amounts. 

ODeratinq Revenues and Non-operatinq Revenues 
Revenues have been classified as operating and non-operating. Operating revenues are those 
revenues that are directly generated from the sale of sewer service to customers. Non-operating 
revenues are those revenues that arise from the overall function of the entity. Examples of non- 
operating revenues are grant revenues, the sale of fixed assets and interest income. 

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Deposits consist of checking accounts and are carried at cost, which approximates market value. 
The carrying amount of deposits is separately displayed on the balance sheet as “Cash and Cash 
Equivalents” and “Restricted Assets”. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the bank balances were 
$527,720 and $400,245, respectively, which were the same as the carrying amount. The District 
has amounts on deposit with one bank in excess of FDIC insured amounts. The bank has 
pledged collateral to cover excess amounts. 

Investments are reported at fair value which is determined using the selected basis. Short term 
investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on a national 
or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. 
Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair market value. 

The District’s investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the 
District at December 31, 2008. The categories are described as follows: 

Category I - Insured and registered, with securities held by the entity or its agent in the entity’s 
name; 

Category 2 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty’s trust 
department or agent in the entity’s name; 

Category 3 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, or its trust 
department or agent but not in the entity’s name. 
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GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2008 and 2007 

Fair Value/ 
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Carrying Cost cost 

$ 351,478 $ 351,478 
75,187 75,187 Customer deposits 75,187 

Debt payment accounts 101,055 101,055 101,055 

Operation & maintenance $ 351,478 $ $ 

Total $ 426,665 $ $ 101,055 $ 527,720 $ 527,720 

In accordance with GASB 40, the District has $'101,055 in bond sinking fund investments held in 
federally backed US Treasury Obligations rated AAA/Aaa. The market risk on these investments 
is negligible. 

NOTE 3 - RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Net assets comprise the various net earnings from operating and non-operating revenues, 
expenses and contributions of capital. Net assets are classified in the following three 
components: invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted net 
assets. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of all capital assets net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt, that is attributable to the acquisition, 
construction and improvement of those assets. Restricted net assets consists of net assets for 
which constraints are placed thereon by external parties, such as lenders, grantors, contributors, 
laws, regulations and enabling legislation, including self-imposed legal mandates. Unrestricted 
net assets consist of all other net assets not included in the above categories. 

Included in restricted net assets at December 3 1 , 
2008 2007 

Bond sinking fund $ 101,055 $ 99,058 
Construction funds 100 
Grant receivable 73,707 
Construction accounts payable (69,207) 
Accrued interest on bonds (26,459) (27,359) 

Total Restricted Net Assets $ 79,196 $ 71,699 

NOTE 4 - UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE 

All property, plant and equipment including infrastructure assets are recorded at cost and 
depreciated over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. Upon sale or 
retirement, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the respective 
accounts and the resulting gain or loss included in the results of operations. 

Repair and maintenance charges, which do not increase the useful lives of the assets, are 
charged to income as incurred. Interest incurred on construction funding during the period of 
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GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2008 and 2007 

construction is capitalized and is added to the item under construction rather than charged to 
expense as incurred. 

Balance at Balance at 
December 31, December 31, 

Land $ 25,000 $ $ $ 25,000 

Equipment 44,401 33,862 78,263 
Mains 3,342,150 3,342,150 
Pump stations 569,679 13,531 583,210 
Structures and improvements I ,  194,665 1 ,I 94,665 
Transportation equipment 32,126 32,126 

Subtotal 5,208,595 130,622 5,339,2 17 
Accumulated depreciation (456,797) ( I  50,816) (607,6 13) 

Fixed Assets, net $ 4,751,798 $ (20,194) $ $ 4,731,604 

Asset Type 2007 Additions Retirements 2008 

Construction in progress 574 83,229 83,803 

NOTE 5 - BONDED INDEBTEDNESS 

Kentuckv Rural Water Finance Corporation Bonds, Series 2001 D 
On September 25, 2002, the City of Crittenden participated in the Kentucky Rural Water Finance 
Corporation's first Flexible Term Finance Program wherein the proceeds of the revenue bonds 
issued were used to provide funds for several utility systems throughout Kentucky. The City's 
total share of the bond proceeds was $1,544,982. These funds were used for construction of a 
new wastewater treatment plant, two new pump stations, and the demolition of the old treatment 
plant. The Grant County Sanitary Sewer District assumed bonds outstanding of $1,530,000 on 
April 23, 2004 pursuant to its takeover contract with the City of Crittenden. All revenue bonds 
mature on January 1" of each year ending in 2023. Principal is due in annual installments on 
January '1 '' through 2023. The bonds bear an interest rate of between 3.60% and 5.1 5% and are 
payable on January 1 '' and July 1" of each year. The remaining debt service is as follows: 

Interest 
Year Rates 
2009 3.60-5.1 5% 
2010 3.60-5.1 5% 
201 1 4.90-5.1 5% 
2012 4.90-5.1 5% 
2013 4.90-5.15% 

20 14-2023 4.90-5.15% 
Totals 

Principal Interest Total 
Amount Amount Debt Service 

$ 62,000 $ 62,386 $ 124,386 
64,000 
64,000 
69,000 
73,000 

970,000 
$ 1,302,000 

60,119 
57,3 19 
53,894 
50,237 

258,406 
$ 542,361 

124,l 19 
121,319 
122,894 
123,237 

1,228,406 
$ 1,844,361 
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GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2008 and 2007 

NOTE 6 - NOTES PAYABLE 

Grant Countv Fiscal Court 
On October 22, 2003 the District received an unsecured, non-interest bearing loan in the amount 
of $10,000 from the Grant County Fiscal Court to assist in paying organizational and start-up 
costs. The Fiscal Court encouraged the District to repay the loan no later than December 31, 
2004. No payment and no demand for repayment have been made as of December 31, 2008. 
This note is considered payable in the current period. 

On May 14, 2004 the District received a second unsecured, non-interest bearing loan in the 
amount of $.ll,OO0 from the Grant County Fiscal Court to assist in purchasing a truck. The 
Fiscal Cocirt encouraged the District to repay the loan no later than May 14, 2005. No payment 
and no demand for repayment have been made as of December 31, 2008. This note is 
considered payable in the current period. 

NOTE 7 - INDEBTEDNESS SUMMARY 

The changes in long-term indebtedness for 2008 are as follows: 

Balance at 
December 31, 

Balance at 
December 3'1, 

Debt Instrument 2007 Additions Retirements 2008 
Fiscal Court Loan - Octaber 2003 $ 10,000 $ $ $ 10,000 
Fiscal Court Loan - May 2004 1 1,000 1 1,000 
KRW series 200 1 D bonds - Revenue 1,362,000 (60,000) 1,302,000 

Subtotal 1,383,000 $ $ (60,000) 1,323,000 
Less: current portion of long-term debt (81,000) (83,000) 

~~ 

Total Long-Term Indebtedness $ '1,302,000 $ 1,240,000 

NOTE 8 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Grant County Sanitary Sewer District is operated by the staff of the Bullock Pen Water 
District. The Sewer District pays a management fee to the Bullock Pen Water District for these 
services. This fee was $I 14,342 and $1 10,004 in 2008 and 2007, respectively. The Chairman 
of the Board of Commissioners and two other commissioners of the District serve on the boards 
of both the Grant County Sanitary Sewer District and of the Bullock Pen Water District. 

NOTE 9 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCYlCREDlT RISK 

Grant County Sanitary Sewer District is a government agency operating with one office in 
Crittenden, Kentucky. It grants credit to customers who are primarily local residents and 
businesses. The District receives all of its operating revenues from customers in Grant County, 
Kentucky. 



GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,2008 and 2007 

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS 

Grant County Sanitary Sewer District has committed to receive an Economic Development Fund 
Grant from the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority for its Phase I Sewer Extension Project. The 
District anticipates that it will provide $236,000 for the project, while the Kentucky Infrastructure 
Authority will contribute $1,550,000. This project is currently underway and on schedule, with an 
initial receivable for expenses incurred of $73,707 from the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority. 
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GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 
SCHEDULES OF OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
For the Years Ended December 31,2008 and 2007 

Operations, Maintenance and Administrative Expenses 

Salaries and wages - commissioners 
Advertising 
Bad debt expense 
Chemicals 
Contractual services - accounting 
Contractual services - engineering 
Contractual services - legal 
Contractual services - management 
Contractual services - sample analysis 
Contractual services - other 
Insurance - general liability 
Insurance - vehicle 
Insurance - property 
Materials and supplies 
Miscellaneous 
Payroll taxes 
Purchased power 
Rental of equipment 
Transportation 
Utility regulatory assessment 

Total Operations, Maintenance and Administrative Expenses 

2008 

$ 5,900 
163 

2,016 
5,530 

2'1,129 
7,693 

19,113 
1 14,342 

3,389 
69,405 
3,269 

4,778 
33,696 

74 
45 1 

32,153 
2,883 
1,018 

993 

2,'132 

2007 

$ 5,800 
144 

9,873 
7,899 

17,041 
8,995 
8,213 

,110,004 
3,348 

57,105 
3,21'1 
1,404 
5,124 

24,473 
68 

444 
27,966 

121 
940 

$ 330,127 $ 292,173 
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Val Gordcl; 
C e r t i f i e d  P u b l i c  A c c o  u i i t a n t s  

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED OM AM AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERMlYiENTAUDlTlMG 
STANDARDS 

To the Board of Commissioners 
Grant County Sanitary Sewer District 

We have audited the financial statements of the Grant County Sanitary Sewer District as 
of and for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, and have issued our report 
thereon dated April 24, 2009. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. 

internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Grant County Sanitary Sewer 
District’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our audit 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Grant County 
Sanitary Sewer District’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Grant County Sanitary Sewer District’s 
internal control over financial reporting. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, 
to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control 
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the Grant 
County Sanitary Sewer District’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report 
financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such 
that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Grant County 
Sanitary Sewer District’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not 
be prevented or detected by the Grant County Sanitary Sewer District’s internal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, 
that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial 
statements will not be prevented or detected by the Grant County Sanitary Sewer 
District’s internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the  limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all 
deficiencies in the internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 



Van Gordctr. Walker & Co.. Inc. 
C e r t i f i e d  P u ii I I c A c c o u n t  a n t s  

Compliance and Other 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Grant County Sanitary 
Sewer District's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 
agreements. Noncompliance could have a direct and niaterial effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Gover/7mer?f Audi>'itiny Sfandards. 

'Phis report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, 
management, others within the organization, and federal awarding agencies and pass- 
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

Van Gorder, Walker & Co., Inc. 
Erlanger, Kentucky 
April 24, 2009 
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(Final Engineering Report) 



Final Engineering Report 
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SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION, PHASE I 
GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 

08089.02 

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 

Separate sealed BIDS for Sanitary Sewer Extension Phase I ,  will be received by the OWNER at the 
office of Grant County Sanitary Sewer District, 1 Farrell Drive, Crittenden, Kentucky, until 1 1 :00 a.m., 
local time, on Thursday, November 19, 2009, and then at said office publicly opened and read 
aloud. 

Construction of Base Bid shall consist of approximately 8,450 LF of 8" PVC gravity sewer, 
485 LF of DI gravity sewer, 945 LF of 4 laterals, 20,452 LF of PVC force main, 43 manholes, 4 
connections to existing sewer, 2 master meter manholes, 71 cleanouts, 495 LF of bores, 40 LF 
of roadway open cut, 460 LF of concrete cap, 13 sewage combination air valves, 2 each of gate 
valve, 4 each of check valve, 1 submersible pump station, 5 submersible grinder pump stations, 
and all necessary appurtenances. 

Construction of Alternate # I  shall consist of approximately 3,796 LF of 2" HDPE force main, 3,775 
LF of 1-1/4" HDPE force main, 22 individual grinder pumps, miscellaneous valves and all necessary 
appurtenances. 

Construction of Alternate #2 shall consist of 10,035 LF of 6" PVC force main (in place of 3" PVC 
force main in Base Bid), upgrade of a submersible grinder pump station (in Base Bid) to submersible 
pump station and increase in size of submersible pump station (in Base Bid) and all necessary 
appurtenances. 

The CONTRACT DOCUMENTS may be examined at the following locations: 

CMW, Inc., 400 East Vine Street, Suite 400, Lexington, KY 
Grant County Sanitary Sewer District, 1 Farrell Drive, Crittenden, Kentucky. 
Associated General Contractors/McCraw HilVDodge Plan Room, 950 Contract Street, Suite 1 OOA, 
Lexington, KY 
Associated General Contractors/McCraw Hill Plan Room, 922 North Main Street, 2"d Floor, London, 
KY 
Allied Construction Industries, 101 0 Yale Avenue, Cincinnati, OH 
Reed Construction Data/ABC Plan Room, 181 2 Taylor Avenue, Louisville, KY 
Reed Construction [lata/ABC Plan Room, 2020 Liberty Road, Suite 1 10, L.exington, KY 
F. W. Dodge Plan Room, Grant Baldwin Building, 655 Eden Park Road, Suite 515, Cincinnati, Ot i  
45202 

Copies of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS may be obtained from Lynn Imaging, 328 Old East Vine 
Street, Lexington, KY 40507, phone 859\255-1021 upon payment of $75.00 (non-refundable) for 
each set. Make checks payable to CMW, lnc. 

If bidding documents are requested to be sent by mail, include an additional $14.00 for each set to 
cover cost of handling and postage. This check should be made payable to Lynn Imaging. 

The Owner reserves the right to waive any informalities or to reject any or all bids 

Each bidder must deposit with his bid, security in the amount, form and subject to the conditions 
provided in the Information for Bidders. 

No bidder may withdraw his bid for within 90 days after the date of the opening thereof. 

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 00010 - Page I 



SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION, PHASE I 
GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 

08089.02 

The award will be made to the lowest, responsive, responsible bidder. 

This procurement will be subject to regulations contained in 40 CFR Part 31.36 or with Division of 
Water Procurement Guidance. 

Bidders must comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Anti-Kickback Act, and the 
Contract Work Hours Standard Act and 40 CFR 31.36 L. (3,4 & 6). 

Bidders must comply with the President's Executive Order No. 1 1246 as amended, which prohibits 
discrimination in employment regarding race, creed, color, sex or national origin. 

This project is in compliance with Executive Order 11 246 (Equal Employment Opportunity) as 
amended. 

The Contractor / Subcontractor will comply with 41 CFR 60-4, in regard to affirmative action to insure 
equal opportunity to females and minorities and will apply the time tables and goal set forth in 41 
CFR 60-4 if applicable to the area of the project. 

Bidder will make positive efforts to use small, minority, women owned and disadvantaged 
businesses. 

This project is being funded by appropriations from the 2005 and 2008 Kentucky General Assembly 
and from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. 

November 2,2009 
Date GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 

BOBBY BURGESS, CHAIRMAN 

CMW, INC. 
400 EAST VINE STREET, SUITE 400 
LEXINGTON, KENTUCKY 
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November 24, 

To: 

From: 

Re: 

2009 

Bobby Burgess, Chairman 
Grant County Sanitary Sewer District 

Kerry Odle 
CMW, Inc. 

Sanitary Sewer Extension Phase 1 
Grant County Sanitary Sewer District 

Bid Opening Minutes - -_ __ - __ _______ __ - - ___ . Subject: 

Bids were accepted by Grant County Sanitary Sewer District until 11:OO am on Thursday, 
November 19, 2009. At 11:OO am Bobby Burgess, Chairman, welcomed and thanked all 
bidders for their bids and introduced Billy Catlett as Superintendent and Kerry Odle as 
Project Engineer. 

Mr. Burgess turned the bid opening over to Mr. Odle. Mr. Odle opened and read aloud 
“Base Bid”, “Alternate #I, “Base Bid and Alternate # I  and Alternate #2 as shown on 
attached “Tabulation of Bids”. Mr. Odle explained that determination of low bidder was 
based on the combination of the Base Bid and Alternate #I. The apparent low bidder 
was announced as Lonkard Construction Company with a bid of $1,276,894.00. 

@ 

Attached is a list of attendees who were present at the bid opening. With no further 
business, the bid opening was complete. 

Respecfully Submitted, 

pqM& erry Odl , PE 

project Engineer 

Attachments 

C: Tom Nienaber w/a 
C: file wla 

CMWnc. 
ARCHITECTURE ENGINEERING INTERIOR DESIGN LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 

400 E. Vine St , Suite 400, Lexington, KY 40507 859 254 6623 fax 859 259 1877 
www.crnwaec corn 
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November 24,2009 

Mr. Bobby Burgess 
Grant County Sanitary Sewer District 
P.O. Box460 
Crittenden, Kentucky 41 31 1 

Re: Sanitary Sewer Extension Phase 1 
Grant County Sanitary Sewer District 

Dear Bobby: 

I 

I have reviewed all bids and found math errors in the second and third place bid which did 
not affect the determination of the low bidder. The low bidder was Lonkard Construction 
Company with a Base Bid I Alternate # I Bid of $1,276,894.00 and an Alternate #2 Bid of 
$72,615.00. I have checked with the Engineers on the attached reference list and have 
talked with five different Engineers. All the Engineers that I called gave great references for 
Lonkard Construction Company and all would have them again for any sanitary sewer 
project. 

With the promising prosibility to connect the 300 mobile home lots to the Sherman area, I 
would recommend awarding the Base Bid, Alternate #I and Alternate #2 for a total bid of 
$1,349,509.00. Alternate consists of upgrading the Sherman pump station, the force main 
from Sherman to campground and the campground pump station to handle the 300 mobile 
home lots. 

' 

Attached is an As - Bid Budget for this project. 

If you have any questions, or need additional information, please give me a call. 

Attachments 

C: Tom Nienaber wla 
File wla 

CMWnc. 
ARCHITECTURE ENGINEERING INTERIOR D E S I G N  L A N D S C A P E  ARCHITECTURE 

400 E Vine S t ,  Suite 400, Lexinglon, KY 40507 859 254 6623 Fax 859 259 1877 
w w w  cmwaec corn 
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LONKARD CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 
- - 

PO. BOX 123 UNION, KENTUCKY41091 

NoveniOer 19.2009 

Grant County Sewer District 
I Farrell Drive 
Crittenden, KY 

Re: Grant County Sanitary Sewer Extension - Phase I 
Bid Submittal Information 

Ronnie Lonkard - President 
Loizkard Construction Company 
3 Lendale Drive 
Florence, Kentucky 41 042 
859-3 84-3223 jk: 859-64 7-3 993 

Five similar projects: 
1. KDOT Canipbell County US 27 

Viox & Viox Engineers - Jim Viox 
466 Erlanger Road 
Erlanger, KY 41018 859-727-3293 

2. Saizitation District Tfiunderidge 
Berling Engineers - Jim Berling 
16 71 Park Road 
Ft. Wright, Ky 4101 7 859-331-9191 

3. City of Critteitden 
Hicks & Maim -Logan Murphy 

11 6 Hunies Road 
Williamstown, KY 41097 859-824-5231 

4. IDI Purk West 
PBS & J - Drew Squires 
7300 Turfway Road 
Florence, KY 41042 859-3 71-9051 

5. Sanitation District Cold Spring 
Berling Engineers - Jim Berling 

(859) 384-3223 FAX (859) 647-3993 

Five siniilar projects past 5 yews: 
1. KDOT Canzpbell County US27 

Viox & Viox Engineers ~ Jini Viox 
466 Erlanger Road 
Erlanger, KY 41 01 8 859- 72 7-3293 

2. IDI Park South 
Buyer Becker -Rob Keller 
209 Grandview Ave. 
Ft. Mitchell, KY 41017 859-261-1113 

3. KDOT Boone Co. Gunpowder Road 
Viox & V i m  Engineers - Bill Viox 

466 Erlanger Road 
Erlanger, KY 41018 859-727-3293 

4. City o j  Ft. Wright - St. Agries 
CDS Associates - Mark Bruggenrriiz 
7000 Dixie Highway 
Florence, KY 41042 859-525-0544 

5. KDOT Roone County US 42 
Viox & Viox - Bill Viox 

Serving the Northern Kentucky area for over 40 years 



SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION, PHASE 1 
GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 

08089.02 

BID (Revised) 

SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION, PHASE I 
GRANT COUNTY 

GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DlSrRlCT 

(hereinafter called "BIDDER')), a 
n 

* organized and existing under the laws of the State of 

- ". doing btJSlneSS as A. a;lhed c@--&pm./ 
To the Grant Counly Saiillary Sewer Oislricl (tiereinaller called "OWNER") 

In compliance with your Advertisement for Bids, BIDDER hereby proposes to perform all 

WORK for Ihe conslrucliorl of Sarlilary Sewer Exlension, Phase 1 - Granl Cowly .  in strict 

accordance with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, within the time set forth therein, and at the prices 

sta tcd bclow 

By submission of this BID, the BIDDER certifies, and in the case of a joint BID each party 

thereto certifies as lo its own organization, khat this BID has been arrived at independently, withou! 

consultation, communication, or agreement as to any matter relating lo this BID with arty other 

BIDDER or with any competitor 

Bidder hereby agrees to commence work under this contract on or before a date to be 

specified in the NOTICE TO PROCEED and to fully complete the base bid and Alternate # I  within 

210 consecutive calendar days and Alternate #2 (if awarded) will add an additional 45 days 

BIDDER further agrees to pay as liquidated damages, the sum of $500 for each consecutive 

calendar day thereafter as hereinafter provided in Section 15 of the General Conditions. 

- ----I 

BIDDER agrees to perform all the work described in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS for the 
following unit prices. 

NOTE BIDS shall include sales tax and all other applicable taxes and lees 

(1) BIDS shall include sales tax and all other applicable taxes and fees. 

* Insert "a corporation", "a partnership". or "an individual" as applicable 
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SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION, PHASE I 
GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 

08089.02 

(2) Breakdown of work IS for general information Any work shown on Drawings and/or 
specified nut not listed below shall be included in total base bid. Cost of items of 
work not specifically described below may be  added to related bid item(s) at bidder's 
discretion. 

BID SCHEDULE 

Part I "  Base Bid 

Description , Estimated Unit 
Quantity 

I - - - I -_ - - - - 
8" PVC Sanitary Sewer 1 850s _ _  ~ T. 1 LF 
8" [3l Sanifary Sewer , 485*- LF 

I Itern No 

i 2  -_ _- ~ . -  1 

Unit Price 

I 1 Treatment Plant 
10. I Connection to Existing I 2 

Man hole 

Standard .Manhole (5 01' 15 
Shallow Manhole 

~ _--- - - -- I 22 
to 8.0') -- 

13 Standard Manhole (8 01' I 
- 1 to 10 00') 

Standard Manhole 
( I O  01' to 12.00') 



SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION, PHASE I 
GRANT COUNTY SANJTARY SEWER DISTRICT 

Including Wet Well, 
Valve Vault, Fencing and 

08089.02 

Description 
I . - -  

Bored and Jacked 14" 210 
I Steel Encasement 

(Railroad Bore) 
' Bor&'and Jacked 12" 

Steel Encasernenr (1-75 
Bore) 

- _- 

' 22 Bored arid Jacked 12" GO 
8 Stcel Encasement 

23 Concrete Cap over 
Sewer Pipe 

24 C1G-n - Out 
25. 

_- - 

' 

700 
Cover 
3' MJ Gate Valve wlf30x 
and Cover , 1 

, 27 3" Check Valve w/Box 1 I ti dl@L 

- 
Unit 

LF 

LF 

LF 

LF 

I 2" MJ Galc Valve with ! 1 EA 

EA 

EA 

~ Box and Cover 
2" Check Valve w l i h  Box I 3 

_. - . . . 

! 

and Cover 
Submersible Sewage 
Pump Station #C 
includtng Wet Well. 
Valve Vault, Fencing and * 

Submersible Sewage 
Grinder Pump Station #A 

.-- I 32. 

! 
IT- 
i 

including Wet Well, 
Valve Vault. Fencing and 
all Piping and Necessary 
Appurtenances i 

--I - 
EA 

E A  

- 
Unit Price 

$2 10. - 

- __ -  

Total 
Amount 

~ Y V k X l -  : 

I 

!$ 379:- I 
I 
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SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION, PHASE I 
GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 

Submersible Se\NGe 
Grinder Pump Station 
#F. including Wet Well, 
Valve Vault, Fencinq and 

08089.02 

1 

I 35 

Unit 

EA 

Submersible Sewage 
Grinder Pump Station 
#G, tnCliJding Wet Well, 
Valve Vault, Fencing and 
all Piping and Necessary 

- .I___ 

Unit Price ToBl 1 
: Amount j 

Item No. I 

All Piping and Necessary 1 I I 

I i Appurtenances I 
I 
I 

I 
1 

Description 

Pumps, including Wet 
Well and All Piping, Gate 

i Valve arid Check Valve 

Total Part I (Base Bid) 
A 

Part II: Alternate Bid #1 

Estimated- 
Quantity 
3796 
3775 
22 
-_ - . 

(Lateral Assembly) on I 
Force Marn and I 

Necessary 
I 
.A__- _-  . I Appurtenances -"- I 

Total Part I 1  (Alleriiale Bid #I ) 

Total (Base Bid & Alternate Bid #1) 

7 ' P ; i c e  1 Total 1 
Amount 

LF 
EA 

I I 

" ----- 

$JG?7Lb, g9+ - 
(Use Figures) 

A/lr CCA I-J 
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SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION, PHASE I 
GRANT CQlJNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 

Deduct Submersible 11 
Sewage Grinder Pump 
Station #G including Wet 

08089.02 

EA 

Part Ill, Allernale f3id #2 - Grinder Pump Station #G changed to Pump Station, 3” Force Main 
changed to 6” Force Main from Pump Station G lo Pump Station C and Increase flow of Pump 
Station C to 480 gpm from 255 gpm. 

Item No. 

I 1. 
2 

i 3  

Description 

6” PVC Force Main 
Deduct 3“ PVC Force 
Main, (Base Bid Item #5)  
Submersible Sewage 
Pump Station #G 
including Wct Wcll. 
Valve Vault, Fencing and 
All Piping and Necessary 
Appurtenances 

Estimated 
Quantity 

10,035 
(-10,035) 

1 

Unit 

LF 
LF 

EA 

Bid hem #24) j 

gPm I 
pumps. I I 

Total Part 111. (Alternate Bid #2) 
/ 

$ 7J’&! 
(Use Figures) 

SUBTOTALS AND TOTAL AMOUNTS SHALL BE SHOWN IN BOTH WORDS AND FIGURES IN 
CASE OF DISCREPANCIES, THE AMOUNT AS WRITTEN IN WORDS SHALL GOVERN. 

The above price shall include all labor, materials, bailing, shoring, removal. overhead, profit, 
Changes shall be insurance. etc., to cover the finished work of the several kinds called for 

processed in accordance with the General Conditions. 

Award of the Contract will be based on the lowest and best Total Base Bid and Alternate #I 

The Bidder agrees that the Owner reserves the right to delete the whole or any part of the 
project from the Contract. 

The Brdder understands that the Owper reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to 
waive any informalities in the bidding 

BID 00200 - PAGE 5 



SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION, PHASE I 
GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT 

08089.02 

The Bidder agrees that this bid shall be  good and may not be withdrawn for a period of 
ninety (90) calendar days after the scheduled closing time for receiving bids 

Upon receipt of written notice of the acceptance of this bid. Bidder wtll execute the formal 
contract attached within ten (IO) da s and deliver a surety bond or bonds as required by the bid 
security attached in the sum of .<$& uk*s/"AL z/Q is to become {he 
property of the Okner in the Event the conlracl and bond areno1 executed within%@ time above se{ 
forth, as  liquidated damages for the delay and additional expense to the Owner caused thereby 

$ - 

Seal (If Bid by Corpo tion) 

Attest" ,@ 
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1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

AS-BID PROJECT COST 

GRANT COUNTY SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION PHASE I 

November 25,2009 

Construction Cost 

Public Meetings 

Legal Advertisements 

Legal 

Acquisition 

Easements 

Preliminary Engineering 

Engineering Design (8.43%) 

Resident Inspection (5.25%) 

$1,349,509.00 

$ 500.00 

$ 1,200.00 

$ 40,000.00 

$ 110,000.00 

$ 40,000.00 

$ 10,000.00 

$ 113,764.00 

$ 70,849.00 

10. SSES Study $ 10,000.00 

11. Staking $ 20,000.00 

12. Grant Administration $ 15,000.00 

13. Railroad Permit Preparation $ 5,000.00 

15. Environmental $ 10,000.00 

14. Railroad Permit $ 22,500.00 

16. Archeologist $ 4,561.00 

17. Biologist $ 4,625.00 

18. Contingencies $ 97,493.00 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $1,925,000.00 

FUNDING 

1. KIA 2005 Grant $ 900,000.00 

2. KIA 2008 Grant $ 400,000.00 

3. KIA 2008 Grant $ 250,000.00 

4. Grant MHP (Cost of Pump Station) !$ 45,000.00 

5. Tap-on Fees 76 $ 30,000.00 

6. Stimulus Grant $ 300,000.00 

TOTAL FUNDING $1,925,000.00 





EXHIBIT “12” 
(City of Williarnstown/City of Dry 

Ridge 201 Study Area 
Encroachment Authorization) 



This Sanitary Sewer Agrecinent (“Agrccmeiit”) is made and entered into effective the 
day of Septeinber, 2009 by and bctwccn the City of Willianistown, Kentucky, by and 

tlirougli its Mayor, and pursuant to duly authorized and adopted Resolution o f  its City Council, 
(L‘Wilfintnsiojwi”); [lie City of Dry Ridge, Kenlucky, by and lllrough i t s  Mayor, pursumt to duly 
autliorized Resolution of its City Council (“Dry Ridge”); and tlic Grant County Sanitary Sewcr 
District? by and t.hrouglz its Cliainnan, Bobby Burgess, and pursuant to duly authorized and 
adopted Resolution of its Board (1‘DisiWict”). 

WITNESSETH: 

TVI-TEREAS, thc District is in thc process ofimplcrneniing its Phase I Sanitary Sewer 
Expansion Project (“‘Projcct”) to provide sanitary sewer service to various arcas o f  Grant Co~mty, 
I<e~it~iclcy, including the US 25 conidor lsegiiiniiig at ap.)pmxiiiiateiy the Cjncirulati SouUi 
Campgrouid and cxtending souit11 oil US 25 io Sliennan, TC;erituclcy (“‘PProjecl Area”) and, 

WHEREAS, the sout1ia-n most portion of thc Projcct Arca includes limited portions of 
arca aoutlz of Shemian Mi. Zion Road wliicli incorporates a portion OF teriitory aurently 
included in the Williainstown 201 Study Area and, 

WHEREAS, Dry Ridge, uiider a@-eetnmt wit11 Wjllia~nstowi, is currently providing 
sanitary sewer scrvice to areas adjacent to or ncar tlic soutlim most porlion of the Project Area 
and, 

WHEREAS, a portion of h e  Project Area extends outside of  the District’s current 201 
Study Area (Exhibit “A”) and inlo the WiHiamstowilDiy Ridge 201. Area (Exhibit “F’) and, 

WKEREAS, the District, Williaiiistown and Dry Ridge agree. to and recognize that it is in 
tlie best intcrcst of the corninunity that the District service those limited portions o f  the Project 
Arca located ivitliin the WillisvmstownlDiy Ridge 201 Area. 

NOW THEREFORE, in coiiSidmation of dic prcmises set hith hcrein, flit? parties agree 
ns follows: 

I .  Williainstown, Jlry Ridge and Ibe District hereby agree diat the Distw’cl be and 
hercby i s  ganted mtliority to provide sanitary scwef scrvicc to that arca currcntly locatcd within 
the WilliainstowiilDry Ridge 201 Study Arca ;tnd gmerally bounded on the east by the Norfolk 
Southern Railroad; on tlie north approximately 300 feet south of Sliminan Mt. Zion Road; on the 
wcst by US Highway 25; and on the so11t11 along the northern most property linc of UIC Grant 
County Board of Education property, said area being more particurarly described in the attached 
Exliihit “B” and herein rcfcrred to as the 201 Service Area. It is the intention of thc partics that 



the Exhibit “B” area shall include approximatcly 15 residences located between the Norfolk 
Southern Railroad slid US I-Iighvay 25 as well as the I-Iedger residence and outlyjng barns and 
out buildings to the imnecliate west of US Highway 25. Tlis pat.ties hereto agree that the District 
shall be pexit-jitted to provide sanitary SBWM service to the 201 Smicc: Area. as the District may 
from time to tima dcem approyriaic. 

2. WjIliamstown nnd Dry Ridgc hereby g m t s  to tble District h e  exclusive authority 
to provide sanitary sewcr service to the 201 Service Area e%fcctive as of the approval of this 
Agrceinent by the parties’ respective legislative bodies. 

3. The parties hereby agrce to submit this Agrement to their respective legislative 
bodies Tor adoption and approval by appropxiatel y approved Rcsolution. 

4. l i e  autlionty granted to the District herein to provide sanitary scwer scrvica shall 
be limited to tlie 201 Scrvice Area only as described in Exhibit “B”. This Agreement shall not be 
construed as or constitute any ohcr grant of mlhoi-ity to the District to extend saoitary sewer 
servicc to any other area currently located within the 201 Study Area of ejtiier Willianistom or 
Dry Ridge. Likewise this Agreemait glia11 not be construed as a grant of authority to 
Williainstowii or Diy Ridge to exlcnd sanjlary sewer scrvicc to any area currently incorporated 
in the District’s 201 Study Area. 

5. T]ljs Agrcment sliall be binding upon the District, Williamstown, Dry Ridge and 
their respectjve successors and assigns. 

6. ‘Ilia Uist~ict sliall be permitted to providc sanitary sewer service to the 201 
Sewicc Area as the District deems appropriate in its sole judgment and discretion, This 
Agreemcnt shall not constitute nor place upon lhc District any obligation to provide sanitary 
sewer service i ~ t l i i n  tlic 201 Service Area. It is acknowledge that the District is c.lu.1ently in the 
process of impleznenting its Pliase I Projcct which i s  anticipated to deliver satiitaiy sewer service 
to a 130rtion of the 201 Service Area idciitified in Exliibit “B”. In die went: that the District, for 
whatever reason, i s  unable to provide sanitary sewer service to tliosc residents identified on the 
attached Exhibit “F’, th is Agreement shall bccome null and void. It i s  further agreed by thc 
padies 11meto in thc eveut the District does not extend sanitary sewer service to those residents 
identified jn the attached Exhibit “B” on or before lune 1, 2010, this Agreement sliall become 
null and void. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, tlie parties hmcunto set their hand effiictive the date and year 
first above written. 

CJTY OF WILLIAR4STOWN 

MAYOR GLENN CAT,DWET,L 

2 



CITY OF DRY RIDGE 

BY: 

GRANT COUNTY SANJTARY SEWER DISTRICT 

BY: 
BOBBY BURGESS, CHAIRMAN 

3 



EXHIBIT ‘‘A9’ 





EXHIBIT “B” 
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